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subject to such filing requirements for the pastl@s. Yes[Xl] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lidisnitted electronically and posted on its corpokieb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsto Rule 405 of Regulation5¢§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the precedignonth
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller reporting
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Large accelerated fileild Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the)ActYes [ No

The aggregate market value of the common units eldon-affiliates of the registrant (treating miénagers, executive officers and 10%
unitholders of the registrant as if they may bdiafés of the registrant) was approximately $488,851 as of June 30, 2009, based on $22.80
per unit, the closing price of the common unitseg®rted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market on sdate.

Number of Common Units outstanding as of Febru&ry?®10: 29,840,431

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the definitive proxy statement for thgistrant’'s 2010 Annual Meeting of Unitholdersheld on May 12, 2010, are
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PART I.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Dorchester Minerals, L.P. is a publicly traded Dedee limited partnership that commenced operationdanuary 31, 2003 upon the
combination of Dorchester Hugoton, Ltd., RepublayRity Company, L.P. and Spinnaker Royalty Comp#ri, Dorchester Hugoton was a
publicly traded Texas limited partnership, and R#joiand Spinnaker were private Texas limited panghips. Our common units are listed on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market. American Stockrisfer & Trust Company is our registrar and tranafgent. Their address and telephone
number is 59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038, (8987-5449. Our executive offices are located aB38ak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300,
Dallas, Texas, 75219-4541, and our telephone numk{gd4) 559-0300. We have established an Intemeésite at www.dmlp.néhat only
contains the last annual meeting presentation dimk o the NASDAQ website. You may obtain all cemt filings free of charge at the
NASDAQ website by clickin¢‘Real-Time SEC Filings.” We will provide electroniz paper copies of our annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, or current reportg=orm 8-K and amendments to those reports fitddroished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) free of charge uporitemirequest at our executive offices. In this regbe term “Partnership,” as well as the
terms “us,” “our,” “we,” and “its” are sometimesadsas abbreviated references to Dorchester Mindr&tsitself or Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
and its related entities.

Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Managem®, which is managed by its general partner cbester Minerals Management
GP LLC. As a result, the Board of Managers of Desthr Minerals Management GP LLC exercises effeatontrol of our Partnership. In this
report, the term “general partner” is used as dmeabated reference to Dorchester Minerals Managémi@. Our general partner also controls
and owns, directly and indirectly, all of the pantship interests in Dorchester Minerals OperatiRgahd its general partner. Dorchester
Minerals Operating LP owns working interests arteoproperties underlying our Net Profits Intereptsvides day-to-day operational and
administrative services to us and our general parand is the employer of all the employees wirfopa such services. In this report, the t
“operating partnership” is used as an abbreviagéetence to Dorchester Minerals Operating LP.

Our general partner and the operating partnerskipalaware limited partnerships, and the genexghprs of their general partners are
Delaware limited liability companies. These ensitend our Partnership were initially formed in Dmaber 2001 in connection with the
combination. Our wholly owned subsidiary, Dorchesténerals Oklahoma LP and its general partneiGiklshoma entities that acquired our
wholly owned acquisition subsidiary and its gen@aattner by merger on December 31, 2009.

Our business may be described as the acquisitvameiship and administration of Net Profits Intesesstd Royalty Properties. The Net
Profits Interests represent net profits overridiogalty interests in various properties owned ey dperating partnership. The Royalty
Properties consist of producing and nonproducingenail, royalty, overriding royalty, net profits,daleasehold interests located in 574 cour
and parishes in 25 states.

Our partnership agreement requires that we dig&iuarterly an amount equal to all funds that @sive from the Net Profits Interests
and the Royalty Properties less certain expensgsemsonable reserves.

We intend to grow by acquiring additional oil aratural gas properties, subject to the limitatioasadibed below. The approval of the
holders of a majority of our outstanding commortsiis required for our general partner to caus® @&quire or obtain any oil and natural gas
property interest, unless the acquisition is comgletary to our business and is made either:

» in exchange for our limited partner interests, udthg common units, not exceeding 20% of the comuomats outstanding afte
issuance; o
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* in exchange for cash, if the aggregate cost ofeamgyisitions made for cash during the tw-month period ending on the first
occur of the execution of a definitive agreementlfi@ acquisition or its consummation is no moentthi0% of our aggregate cash
distributions for the four most recent fiscal geast

Unless otherwise approved by the holders of a ritgjof our common units, in the event that we acggroperties for a combination of
cash and limited partner interests, including commuits, (i) the cash component of the acquisitionsideration must be equal to or less than
5% of the aggregate cash distributions made byPautnership for the four most recent quarters @nthé amount of limited partnership
interests, including common units, to be issueslich acquisition, after giving effect to such issre shall not exceed 10% of the common
units outstanding.

Credit Facilities and Financing Plans

We do not have a credit facility in place, nor de anticipate doing so. We do not anticipate inagrany debt, other than trade debt
incurred in the ordinary course of our business. @utnership agreement prohibits us from incuriitdgbtedness, other than trade payables,
(i) in excess of $50,000 in the aggregate at amgrgtime; or (ii) which would constitute “acquisiti indebtedness” (as defined in Section 514
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedjder to avoid unrelated business taxable incfonéderal income tax purposes. We
may finance any growth of our business through &satipns of oil and natural gas properties by isguadditional limited partnership interests
or with cash, subject to the limits described abawe in our partnership agreement.

Under our partnership agreement, we may also fimanc growth through the issuance of additionalrgaship securities, including
options, rights, warrants and appreciation righite wespect to partnership securities from timértee in exchange for the consideration and on
the terms and conditions established by our geparaher in its sole discretion. However, we mayissue limited partnership interests that
would represent over 20% of the outstanding limgadnership interests immediately after givingeeffto such issuance or that would have
greater rights or powers than our common unitsauitithe approval of the holders of a majority of outstanding common units. Except in
connection with qualifying acquisitions, we do watrently anticipate issuing additional partnersgpurities. We have an effective registra
statement on Form S-4 registering 5,000,000 comumits that may be offered and issued by the Pasfiyefrom time to time in connection
with asset acquisitions or other business comlandtiansactions. At present, 3,400,000 units rerae&ilable.

Regulation

Many aspects of the production, pricing and marigetf crude oil and natural gas are regulated dgrf and state agencies. Legislation
affecting the oil and natural gas industry is uncarstant review for amendment or expansion, whetjuently increases the regulatory bur
on affected members of the industry.

Exploration and production operations are sub@ettrious types of regulation at the federal, staig local levels. Such regulation
includes:

» permits for the drilling of wells

» bonding requirements in order to drill or operatsisy

» the location and number of wel

» the method of drilling and casing wel

» the surface use and restoration of properties wdooh wells are drilled
» the plugging and abandonment of we
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» numerous federal and state safety requirem
e environmental requirement

e property taxes and severance taxes;

» specific state and federal income tax provisit

Oil and natural gas operations are also subjecatious conservation laws and regulations. Thegelations govern the size of drilling
and spacing units or proration units and the dgmsitvells that may be drilled and the unitizatimmpooling of oil and natural gas properties
addition, state conservation laws establish a maxirallowable production from oil and natural gadlsve hese state laws also generally
prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas angpose certain requirements regarding the ratgtofiproduction. These regulations can limit
the amount of oil and natural gas that the opesatbour properties can produce.

The transportation of natural gas after sale byaipes of our properties is sometimes subjectgolation by state authorities. The
interstate transportation of natural gas is suligétderal governmental regulation, including dagjon of tariffs and various other matters, by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Customers and Pricing

The pricing of oil and natural gas sales is prifyadetermined by supply and demand in the markegpénd can fluctuate considerably.
As a royalty owner and non-operator, we have exghgitimited access to timely information, involvemgand operational control over the
volumes of oil and natural gas produced and sottthe terms and conditions on which such volumesraarketed and sold.

Since 2004 the operating partnership has sold ofdtt natural gas production to a Williams entityrrently Williams Gas Marketing,
Inc.) on a daily market price basis using a yeedgtract that will continue through October 2018eperating partnership frequently reviews
alternative gas purchasers. We believe that treedb@Villiams by the operating partnership or thssl of any single customer would not have a
material adverse effect on us due to alternativelhmasers.

Competition

The energy industry in which we compete is sulijedtitense competition among many companies, lawgel and smaller than we are,
many of which have financial and other resourcesigr than we have.

Business Opportunities Agreement

Pursuant to a business opportunities agreement@oyrour general partner, the general partneuo§eneral partner, the owners of the
general partner of our general partner (the “GRi€%), and, in their individual capacities as offis of the general partner of our general
partner, William Casey McManemin, James E. RalayHrC. Allen, Jr., we have agreed that, except #ighconsent of our general partner,
which it may withhold in its sole discretion, wellwiot engage in any business not permitted bypaunership agreement, and we will have no
interest or expectancy in any business opportuhay does not consist exclusively of the oil antured gas business within a designated area
that includes portions of Texas County, Oklahoma &tevens County, Kansas. All opportunities thatartside the designated area or are not
oil and natural gas business activities are cadedunced opportunities.

3
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The parties also have agreed that, as long astivitias of the general partner, the GP Partias taeir affiliates or manager designees
conducted in accordance with specified standarda;eorenounced opportunities:

» our general partner, the GP Parties and theiia#8 or the manager designees will not be pradditom engaging in the oil al
natural gas business or any other business, egetlif activity is in direct or indirect competitiarth our business activitie

« affiliates of our general partner, the GP Parties their affiliates and the manager designeesnsillhave to offer us any business
opportunity;

« we will have no interest or expectancy in any bestopportunity pursued by affiliates of our gehpaatner, the GP Parties or th
affiliates and the manager designees;

* we waive any claim that any business opportunitgiped by our general partner, the GP Parties ardféiates and the manag
designees constitutes a corporate opportunitystatld have been presented to

The standards specified in the business opporésnitijreement generally provide that the GP Pantidgheir affiliates and manager
designees must conduct their business throughsteiutheir own personnel and assets and not htluse of any personnel or assets of us
general partner or operating partnership. A mandgsignee or personnel of a company in which afilja#é of our general partner or any GP
Party or their affiliates has an interest or in @tha manager designee is an owner, director, manaaner or employee (except for our
general partner and its general partner and thésidiaries) is not allowed to usurp a businesdppity solely for his or her personal benefit,
as opposed to pursuing, for the benefit of the isgpgoarty an opportunity in accordance with thectfed standards.

In certain circumstances, if a GP Party or any sligay thereof, any officer of the general parto€our general partner or any of their
subsidiaries, or a manager of the general parthenrogeneral partner that is an affiliate of a Bty signs a binding agreement to purchas
and natural gas interests, excluding oil and nagas working interests, then such party must patf prior to the consummation of the
transactions so that we may determine whether tsuguthe purchase of the oil and natural gas istedirectly from the seller. If we do not
pursue the purchase of the oil and natural gasaisite or fail to respond to the purchasing pamyptce within the provided time, the
opportunity will also be considered a renouncedoomity.

In the event any GP Party or one of their subsigBasicquires an oil and natural gas interest, dhofyoil and natural gas working
interests, in the designated area, it will offesédl these interests to us within one month of gleting the acquisition. This obligation also
applies to any package of oil and natural gaséstsr including oil and natural gas working intesei at least 20% of the net acreage of the
package is within the designated area; howeves dhligation does not apply to interests purchasedtransaction in which the procedures
described above were applied and followed by theicable affiliate.

Operating Hazards and Uninsured Risks

Our operations do not directly involve the openagilrisks and uncertainties associated with dglfior, and the production and
transportation of, oil and natural gas. Howevermay be indirectly affected by the operational siskid uncertainties faced by the operators of
our properties, including the operating partnershipose operations may be materially curtailedaykd or canceled as a result of numerous
factors, including:

» the presence of unanticipated pressure or irregjelain formations
* accidents

e title problems:

» weather conditions
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» compliance with governmental requirements;
» shortages or delays in the delivery of equipm
Also, the ability of the operators of our propestte market oil and natural gas production depemdsumerous factors, many of which
are beyond their control, including:
» capacity and availability of oil and natural gastsyns and pipeline
» effect of federal and state production and trartsgion regulations
» changes in supply and demand for oil and naturs grad
» creditworthiness of the purchasers of oil and retgas.
The occurrence of an operational risk or unceryaimat materially impacts the operations of therapms of our properties could have a

material adverse effect on the amount that we vedei connection with our interests in productioonfi our properties, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial conditimnesult of operations.

In accordance with customary industry practicespvantain insurance against some, but not allhefrisks to which our business
exposes us. While we believe that we are reasonmadlyed against these risks, the occurrence oharsured loss could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or resolt operations.

Employees

As of February 25, 2010, the operating partnerbhaiph 19 full-time employees in our Dallas, Texasceffand eight fultime employees i
field locations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to Our Business
Our cash distributions are highly dependent oraoitl natural gas prices, which have historically bheery volatile.

Our quarterly cash distributions depend signifibaah the prices realized from the sale of oil aindparticular, natural gas. Historically,
the markets for oil and natural gas have been l@katd may continue to be volatile in the futWarious factors that are beyond our control
will affect prices of oil and natural gas, such as:

» the worldwide and domestic supplies of oil and redtgas;

» the ability of the members of the Organization efrBleum Exporting Countries and others to agresntbmaintain oil prices ar
production controls

» political instability or armed conflict in ¢-producing regions
» the price and level of foreign impor

» the level of consumer demar

» the price and availability of alternative fue

» the availability of pipeline capacit

» weather conditions

» domestic and foreign governmental regulations ardg; anc
» the overall economic environme
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Lower oil and natural gas prices may reduce theuwarnof oil and natural gas that is economic to paedand may reduce our revenues
and operating income. The volatility of oil andural gas prices reduces the accuracy of estimétiesuve cash distributions to unitholders.

We do not control operations and development oRitwalty Properties or the properties underlying tiet Profits Interests that the
operating partnership does not operate, which camigact the amount of our cash distributions.

As the owner of a fractional undivided mineral oyailty interest, we do not control the developnudrthe Royalty or Net Profits Intere
properties or the volumes of oil and natural gaslpced from them, and our ability to influence depeent of nonproducing properties is
severely limited. Also, since one of our statedimess objectives is to avoid the generation of lated business taxable income, we are
prohibited from participation in the developmenboi properties as a working interest or other agpebearing owner. The decision to explore
or develop these properties, including infill driti, exploration of horizons deeper or shallowamtkhe currently producing intervals, and
application of enhanced recovery techniques wiliMzgle by the operator and other working interesteys/ of each property (including our
lessees) and may be influenced by factors beyondamtrol, including but not limited to oil and ma&l gas prices, interest rates, budgetary
considerations and general industry and econonriditions.

Our unitholders are not able to influence or cdrttre operation or future development of the prapsrunderlying the Net Profits
Interests. The operating partnership is unablaftaénce significantly the operations or future eleypyment of properties that it does not
operate. The operating partnership and the othreemtuoperators of the properties underlying thé Rtefits Interests are under no obligatiol
continue operating the underlying properties. Tperating partnership can sell any of the propetieterlying the Net Profits Interests that it
operates and relinquish the ability to controlrdhience operations. Any such sale or transfer ralsst simultaneously include the Net Profits
Interests at a corresponding price. Our unitholderaot have the right to replace an operator.

Our lease bonus revenue depends in significant@athe actions of third parties, which are outsadeur control.

Significant portions of the Royalty Properties andeased mineral interests. With limited exceptjoms have the right to grant leases of
these interests to third parties. We anticipateivétg cash payments as bonus consideration fatigiathese leases in most instances. Our
ability to influence third parties’ decisions todoene our lessees with respect to these nonprodpecoperties is severely limited, and those
decisions may be influenced by factors beyond outrol, including but not limited to oil and natugas prices, interest rates, budgetary
considerations and general industry and econonmditions.

The operating partnership may transfer or abandoopprties that are subject to the Net Profits letss.

Our general partner, through the operating parhigrenay at any time transfer all or part of thegerties underlying the Net Profits
Interests. Our unitholders are not entitled to vaeny transfer; however, any such transfer mgst@multaneously include the Net Profits
Interests at a corresponding price.

The operating partnership or any transferee magddraany well or property if it reasonably belietlest the well or property can no
longer produce in commercially economic quantitidsis could result in termination of the Net Prsfihterests relating to the abandoned well.

Cash distributions are affected by production atfteo costs, some of which are outside of our cdntro

The cash available for distribution that comes frmum royalty and mineral interests, including thet Rrofits Interests, is directly affect
by increases in production costs and other cosiseSf these costs are

6
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outside of our control, including costs of regutgtoompliance and severance and other similar taQser expenditures are dictated by
business necessity, such as drilling additionalsaelresponse to the drilling activity of others.

Our oil and natural gas reserves and the underlyingperties are depleting assets, and there aréditions on our ability to replace them.

Our revenues and distributions depend in largegrathe quantity of oil and natural gas producednfproperties in which we hold an
interest. Over time, all of our producing oil aratural gas properties will experience declinesradpction due to depletion of their oil and
natural gas reservoirs, with the rates of decliaging by property. Replacement of reserves to taairproduction levels requires maintena
development or exploration projects on existingperties, or the acquisition of additional propestie

The timing and size of maintenance, developmeeiptoration projects will depend on the market @siof oil and natural gas and on
other factors beyond our control. Many of the decis regarding implementation of such projectsiuding drilling or exploration on any
unleased and undeveloped acreage, will be madeiddyarties. In addition, development possibiitie the Hugoton field are limited by the
developed nature of that field and by regulatostrietions.

Our ability to increase reserves through futureugitions is limited by restrictions on our usecafh and limited partnership interests for
acquisitions and by our general partner’s obligatmuse all reasonable efforts to avoid unrelatgginess taxable income. In addition, the
ability of affiliates of our general partner to pue business opportunities for their own accouiittsourt tendering them to us in certain
circumstances may reduce the acquisitions preseéntesifor consideration.

Drilling activities on our properties may not begoluctive, which could have an adverse effect amrdutesults of operations and financial
condition.

The operating partnership may undertake drillingvées in limited circumstances on the propertieslerlying the Net Profits Interests,
and third parties may undertake drilling activit@sour other properties. Any increases in ourrkesewill come from such drilling activities
from acquisitions.

Drilling involves a wide variety of risks, includirthe risk that no commercially productive oil @tural gas reservoirs will be
encountered. The cost of drilling, completing apeérating wells is often uncertain, and drilling cgténs may be delayed or canceled as a
result of a variety of factors, including:

e pressure or irregularities in formatiot

* equipment failures or acciden

* unexpected drilling condition:

» shortages or delays in the delivery of equipm
» adverse weather conditions; ¢

» disputes with dri-site owners

Future drilling activities on our properties mayt be successful. If these activities are unsucuoédsis failure could have an adverse
effect on our future results of operations andrfrial condition. In addition, under the terms af tet Profits Interests, the costs of
unsuccessful future drilling on the working intdrpeoperties that are subject to the Net Profitsrgsts will reduce amounts payable to us L
the Net Profits Interests by 96.97% of these costs.
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Our ability to identify and capitalize on acquisitis is limited by contractual provisions and subsitd competition.

Our partnership agreement limits our ability tow@iog oil and natural gas properties in the futesgecially for consideration other than
our limited partnership interests. Because of ifméations on our use of cash for acquisitions andur ability to accumulate cash for
acquisition purposes, we may be required to attémeffect acquisitions with our limited partnersimterests. However, sellers of properties
we would like to acquire may be unwilling to taker dimited partnership interests in exchange faperties.

Our partnership agreement obligates our generahgrato use all reasonable efforts to avoid geimegatnrelated business taxable inca
Accordingly, to acquire working interests we wotlave to arrange for them to be converted into ddieg royalty interests, net profits
interests, or another type of interest that doégeanerate unrelated business taxable income. Phirtiks may be less likely to deal with us
than with a purchaser to which such a conditionldowt apply. These restrictions could preventromfpursuing or completing business
opportunities that might benefit us and our unideos, particularly unitholders who are not tax-egeinvestors.

The duty of affiliates of our general partner teggnt acquisition opportunities to our Partnerghlpnited, pursuant to the terms of the
business opportunities agreement. Accordingly,iss opportunities that could potentially be pulldoe us might not necessarily come to our
attention, which could limit our ability to pursaebusiness strategy of acquiring oil and naturalgyaperties.

We compete with other companies and producerscigniaitions of oil and natural gas interests. Mahthese competitors have
substantially greater financial and other resouticas we do.

Any future acquisitions will involve risks that ¢dadversely affect our business, which our unileas generally will not have the
opportunity to evaluate.

Our current strategy contemplates that we may dhwaugh acquisitions. We expect to participateigtdssions relating to potential
acquisition and investment opportunities. If we iammate any additional acquisitions, our capitéiimeand results of operations may change
significantly, and our unitholders will not haveetbpportunity to evaluate the economic, financial ather relevant information that we will
consider in connection with the acquisition, unlggsterms of the acquisition require approvalaf wnitholders. Additionally, our unitholders
will bear 100% of the dilution from issuing new comon units while receiving essentially 96% of thedfé as 4% of the benefit goes to our
general partner.

Acquisitions and business expansions involve numeerisks, including assimilation difficulties, unidiarity with new assets or new
geographic areas and the diversion of managematté¢'stion from other business concerns. In additioe success of any acquisition will
depend on a number of factors, including the aghititestimate accurately the recoverable volumessdrves, rates of future production and
future net revenues attributable to reserves argdess possible environmental liabilities. Ouieneand analysis of properties prior to any
acquisition will be subject to uncertainties anghgstent with industry practice, may be limiteds@ope. We may not be able to successfully
integrate any oil and natural gas properties tl@bequire into our operations, or we may not aehsired profitability objectives.

A natural disaster or catastrophe could damage Iifes, gathering systems and other facilities $etvice our properties, which could
substantially limit our operations and adverselfeaf our cash flow.

If gathering systems, pipelines or other facilitieat serve our properties are damaged by anyalatisaster, accident, catastrophe or
other event, our income could be significantly inipted. Any event that interrupts the productigathering or transportation of our oil and
natural gas, or which causes us to share in sigmifiexpenditures not covered by insurance, caltdraely impact the market price of our
limited partnership units and the amount of casdilable for distribution to our unitholders. We dot carry business interruption insurance.
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The vast majority of the properties subject tolle Profits Interests are geographically concergthtwhich could cause net proceeds
payable under the Net Profits Interests to be ingaddby regional events.

The vast majority of the properties subject toltet Profits Interests are all natural gas propettiat are located almost exclusively in
Hugoton field in Oklahoma and Kansas. Becauseisfghographic concentration, any regional eventdyuding natural disasters that increase
costs, reduce availability of equipment or supplieduce demand or limit production may impactribeproceeds payable under the Net Pr
Interests more than if the properties were moreyggahically diversified.

The number of prospective natural gas purchasefsrathods of delivery are considerably less thanlevotherwise exist from a more
geographically diverse group of properties. Assalte natural gas sales after gathering and corajare$end to be sold to one buyer in each
state, thereby increasing credit risk.

Under the terms of the Net Profits Interests, mofctihe economic risk of the underlying propertepassed along to us.

Under the terms of the Net Profits Interests, wiltfuall costs that may be incurred in connectidgthuwhe properties, including overhead
costs that are not subject to an annual reimbunselingit, are deducted as production costs or expesduction costs in determining amounts
payable to us. Therefore, to the extent of themags from the burdened properties, we bear 96.Feaosts of the working interest
properties. If costs exceed revenues, we do netve@ny payments under the Net Profits Interéstsvever, except as described below, we
not required to pay any excess costs.

The terms of the Net Profits Interests providegrcess costs that cannot be charged currently bet¢heay exceed current revenues to be
accumulated and charged in future periods, whiehdcesult in us not receiving any payments unberNet Profits Interests until all prior
uncharged costs have been recovered by the ogpptitnership.

Damages associated with the production and gatlgeoirour oil and natural gas properties could affear cash flow.

The operating partnership owns and operates gathsyistems and compression facilities. Casualsel®sr damages from these
operations would be production costs under thederfithe Net Profits Interests and could adveraéfgct our cash flow.

We may indirectly experience costs from repaireplacement of aging equipment.

Some of the operating partnership’s current worlkintgrest wells were drilled and have been prodysince prior to 1954. The 132-mile
Oklahoma gas pipeline gathering system was orilyifradtalled in or about 1948 and because of itsiagn need of periodic repairs and
upgrades. Should major components of this systeine significant repairs or replacement, the otiegepartnership may incur substantial
capital expenditures in the operation of the Okiahgroperties, which, as production costs, woutllice our cash flow from these properties.

Our cash flow is subject to operating hazards antbteseen interruptions for which we may not bl finlsured.

Neither we nor the operating partnership are fulbured against certain risks, either because imstiance is not available or because of
high premium costs. Operations that affect the @riigs are subject to all of the risks normallyidient to the oil and natural gas business,
including blowouts, cratering, explosions and padln and other environmental damage, any of whakiatresult in substantial decreases in
the cash flow from our overriding royalty intereatsd other interests due to injury or loss of lfamage to or destruction of wells, production
facilities or other property, clean-up responsiigt, regulatory investigations and penalties argpansion of operations. Any uninsured costs
relating to the properties underlying the Net Redfinterests will be deducted as a production icosalculating the net proceeds payable to us.

9



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

Governmental policies, laws and regulations cowgidhan adverse impact on our business and casfibdigsons.

Our business and the properties in which we hdketésts are subject to federal, state and loca &wd regulations relating to the oil and
natural gas industry as well as regulations rajatinsafety matters. These laws and regulation$asa a significant impact on production and
costs of production. For example, both Oklahomaléaasas, where properties that are subject to #iePkbfits Interests are located, have the
ability, directly or indirectly, to limit productio from those properties, and such limitations amges in those limitations could negatively
impact us in the future.

As another example, Oklahoma regulations curreetiyire administrative hearings to change the aunagon of the operating
partnership’s gas production wells from one welldach 640 acres in the Guymon-Hugoton field. Prgsliy, certain interested parties have
sought regulatory changes in Oklahoma for “infithy’increased density drilling similar to that whiis available in Kansas, which allows one
well for each 320 acres. Should Oklahoma changexitging regulations to readily permit infill diilg, it is possible that a number of
producers will commence increased density drillimgreas adjacent to the properties in Oklahomiatteasubject to the Net Profits Interest:
the operating partnership or other operators ofppoperties do not do the same, our productionidenetating to these properties may decrease,
or mineral owners may demand increased densitindrilCapital expenditures relating to increasendsity on the properties underlying the |
Profits Interests would be deducted from amounysbie to us under the Net Profits Interests.

Environmental costs and liabilities and changingiesnmental regulation could affect our cash flow.

As with other companies engaged in the ownershippgaduction of oil and natural gas, we always ekpe have some risk of exposure
to environmental costs and liabilities becausectiss associated with environmental compliancewrediation could reduce the amount we
would receive from our properties. The propertiewhich we hold interests are subject to extenfgderal, state, tribal and local regulatory
requirements relating to environmental affairs,Iltheand safety and waste management. Governmeurttedrities have the power to enforce
compliance with applicable regulations and permitsich could increase production costs on our pitiggeand affect their cash flow. Third
parties may also have the right to pursue leg@re&to enforce compliance. It is likely that exgiares in connection with environmental
matters, individually or as part of normal capéapenditure programs, will affect the net cash ffowmn our properties. Future environmental
law developments, such as stricter laws, regulat@renforcement policies, could significantly imase the costs of production from our
properties and reduce our cash flow.

Federal hydraulic fracturing legislation could dglar restrict development of our oil and naturakgaroperties.

Several proposals are before the U.S. Congressftiaplemented, would subject the process of awlic fracturing to regulation.
Hydraulic fracturing involves the injection of watsand and chemicals under pressure into rockdtioms to stimulate production. The use of
hydraulic fracturing is necessary to produce conziméguantities of crude oil and natural gas fromnyreservoirs. Although it is not possible
at this time to predict the final outcome of thgiséation, any new federal restrictions on hydmédacturing could significantly increase
operating, capital and compliance costs. Suchinostases could delay or restrict development tratprs of our oil and natural gas
properties.

Certain U.S. federal income tax deductions curseatlailable with respect to oil and natural gas kexption and development may be
eliminated as a result of future legislation.

The Proposed Fiscal Year 2010 Federal Budget iesllejislation that would, if enacted into law, makgnificant changes to United
States tax laws, including the elimination of certeey U.S. federal income tax incentives curreathailable to oil and natural gas exploration
activities. These changes include, but are notdidhio, (i) the repeal of the percentage deplaitowance for oil and natural gas properties,
(ii) the
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elimination of current deductions for intangiblélldrg and development costs, and (iii) an extensdbthe amortization period for certain
geological and geophysical expenditures. It is eacihether any such changes will be enacted ordomnw any such changes could become
effective. The passage of any legislation as dtrefthese proposals or any other similar changeés.S. federal income tax laws could
eliminate certain tax deductions that are curreatigilable to our unitholders and to oil and ndtgees operators that we rely upon to develop
our properties. Such legislation or changes coafghtively impact both our unitholders and our Ranghip financially.

The adoption of climate change legislation by Cesgrcould result in increased operating costs atticed demand for the oil and natural
gas production from our properties.

On June 26, 2009, the U.S. House of Representap@®ved adoption of the “American Clean Energy &acurity Act of 2009,” also
known as the “cap-and-trade legislation” or ACE®he of the purposes of ACESA is to control and cedemissions of “greenhouse gases,”
or “GHGs,” in the United States. GHGs are certaisas, including carbon dioxide and methane, whiah be contributing to warming of the
Earth’s atmosphere and other climatic changes. ACES8uld establish an economy-wide cap on emissigrBHGs in the United States and
would require a gradual overall reduction in GHGs=ions. The net effect of ACESA will be to impasereasing costs on the combustion of
carbon-based fuels such as oil, refined petrolerodyzts, and natural gas. The U.S. Senate has lvegikon its own legislation for
controlling and reducing emissions of GHGs in theételd States. In addition to the pending climatgdkation, the EPA has issued greenhouse
gas monitoring and reporting regulations that wettt effect January 1, 2010, and require reporipgegulated facilities by March 2011 and
annually thereafter. Beyond measuring and reparthigy EPA issued an “Endangerment Finding” undeti@e 202(a) of the Clean Air Act,
concluding greenhouse gas pollution threatens tihéigphealth and welfare of current and future gatiens. The EPA has proposed regulation
that would require permits for and reductions ieggthouse gas emissions for certain facilities aag issue final rules this year. Although it is
not possible at this time to predict whether or wttee Senate may act on climate change legislatidrow any bill approved by the Senate
would be reconciled with ACESA, any laws or regiglas that may be adopted to restrict or reduce oris of GHGs could require the
operating partnership and oil and natural gas epershat develop our properties to incur increaggerating costs and could have an adverse
effect on demand for the oil and natural gas preddicom our properties.

Our oil and natural gas reserve data and future m@tenue estimates are uncertain.

Estimates of proved reserves and related futureewenues are projections based on engineeringaddtaeports of independent
consulting petroleum engineers hired for that peepd@he process of estimating reserves requiregantial judgment, resulting in imprecise
determinations. Different reserve engineers mayentifferent estimates of reserve quantities arated|revenue based on the same data.
Therefore, those estimates should not be constradeing accurate estimates of the current magteéof our proved reserves. If these
estimates prove to be inaccurate, our businesshmaylversely affected by lower revenues. We aszegtl by changes in oil and natural gas
prices. Oil prices and natural gas prices may e&pee inverse price changes.

Risks Inherent In An Investment In Our Common Units
Cost reimbursement due our general partner maybstantial and reduce our cash available to disttéto our unitholders.

Prior to making any distribution on the common sinite reimburse the general partner and its affdidor reasonable costs and expenses
of management. The reimbursement of expenses eowiersely affect our ability to pay cash distribas to our unitholders. Our general
partner has sole discretion to determine the amaoiutiiese expenses, subject to the annual linb&6fof an amount primarily based on our
distributions to partners for that fiscal year. Bmaual limit includes carry-forward and cabsgek features, which could allow costs in a ye:i
exceed what would otherwise be the annual reimbugsélimit. In addition, our general partner argddffiliates may provide us with other
services for which we will be charged fees as deitged by our general partner.
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Our net income as reported for tax and financiakement purposes may differ significantly from cash flow that is used to determine ¢
available for distributions.

Net income as reported for financial statement pseg is presented on an accrual basis in confomitityaccounting principles genera
accepted in the United States of America. UnithoKld tax statements are calculated based on agljdidax conventions, and taxable income
as calculated for each year will be allocated amamitholders who hold units on the last day of emaxmth. Distributions, however, are
calculated on the basis of actual cash receipts)ges in cash reserves, and disbursements dudngldvant reporting period. Consequently,
due to timing differences between the receipt otpeds of production and the point in time at whighproduction giving rise to those
proceeds actually occurs, net income reported orcansolidated financial statements and on unigokt1's will not reflect actual cash
distributions during that reporting period.

Our unitholders have limited voting rights and dat control our general partner, and their ability temove our general partner is limited.

Our unitholders have only limited voting rights wratters affecting our business. The general padheur general partner manages our
activities. Our unitholders only have the rightatmually elect the managers comprising the Advigmynmittee of the Board of Managers of
the general partner of our general partner. Ouhalders do not have the right to elect the othanagers of the general partner of our general
partner on an annual or any other basis.

Our general partner may not be removed as our gepartner except upon approval by the affirmatiote of the holders of at least a
majority of our outstanding common units (includicgmmon units owned by our general partner andfitigates), subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions. Our general partner and itdi@#s do not own sufficient common units to béeao prevent its removal as general partner,
but they do own sufficient common units to makergraoval of our general partner by other unithadddifficult.

These provisions may discourage a person or gnaup attempting to remove our general partner ougecontrol of us without the
consent of our general partner. As a result ofaheevisions, the price at which our common umslé may be lower because of the absen
reduction of a takeover premium in the trading gric

The control of our general partner may be transéerto a third party without unitholder consent.

Our general partner has agreed not to withdrawntatily as our general partner on or before DecerBhe2010 (with limited
exceptions), unless the holders of at least a 1ityjofr our outstanding common units (excluding coomunits owned by our general partner
and its affiliates) approve the withdrawal. Howewbe general partner may transfer its generahpaihterest to a third party in a merger or in
a sale of all or substantially all of its assetthaiit the consent of our unitholders. Other thanestransfer restrictions agreed to among the
owners of our general partner relating to theieliests in our general partner, there is no reistniéh our partnership agreement or otherwist
the benefit of our limited partners on the abibfythe owners of our general partner to transfeirtbwnership interests to a third party. The
owner of the general partner would then be in atiposto replace the management of our Partnensfitipits own choices.

Our general partner and its affiliates have confliof interests, which may permit our general partand its affiliates to favor their own
interests to the detriment of unitholders.

We and our general partner and its affiliates steard therefore compete for, the time and effogesieral partner personnel who provide
services to us. Officers of our general partnerigndffiliates do not, and are not required teergppany specified percentage or amount of time
on our business. In fact, our general partner tthgyato manage our Partnership in the best inteiour unitholders, but it also has a duty to
operate its business for the benefit of its pasgtn8ome of our officers are also involved in managet and ownership roles in other oil and
natural gas enterprises and have similar duti¢éiseim and devote time to their businesses.
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Because these shared officers function as bothepuesentatives and those of our general partreeitsuaffiliates and of third parties, conflicts
of interest could arise between our general padndrits affiliates, on the one hand, and us owmitholders, on the other, or between us ol
unitholders on the one hand and the third partesvhich our officers also serve management funstié\s a result of these conflicts, our
general partner and its affiliates may favor tloeun interests over the interests of unitholders.

We may issue additional securities, diluting ouithuwlders’ interests.

We can and may issue additional common units aner @apital securities representing limited paghigr units, including options,
warrants, rights, appreciation rights and secwitvéh rights to distributions and allocations miiguidation equal or superior to our common
units; however, a majority of the unitholders maigprove such issuance if (i) the partnership sdesiio be issued will have greater rights or
powers than our common units or (i) if after gigiaffect to such issuance, such newly issued patiipesecurities represent over 20% of the
outstanding limited partnership interests.

If we issue additional common units, it will redumer unitholders’ proportionate ownership intetiests. This could cause the market
price of the common units to fall and reduce theyrét cash distributions paid to our unitholddrsaddition, if we issued limited partnership
units with voting rights superior to the commontanit could adversely affect our unitholders’ wgtipower.

Our unitholders may not have limited liability imet circumstances described below and may be liablthe return of certain distributions.

Under Delaware law, our unitholders could be hetdlé for our obligations to the same extent asrgegal partner if a court determined
that the right of unitholders to remove our genegratner or to take other action under our partripragreement constituted participation in the
“control” of our business.

Our general partner generally has unlimited ligdgfior the obligations of our Partnership, suclitaslebts and environmental liabilities,
except for those contractual obligations of outtfRaship that are expressly made without recourslee general partner.

In addition, Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revisaiform Limited Partnership Act provides that, endertain circumstances, a
unitholder may be liable for the amount of disttibo for a period of three years from the dateisfribution.

Because we conduct our business in various stattaws of those states may pose similar riskaitaunitholders. To the extent to
which we conduct business in any state, our urdirgl might be held liable for our obligations athéy were general partners if a court or
government agency determined that we had not cechplith that state’s partnership statute, or ihtsgof unitholders constituted participation
in the “control” of our business under that stagastnership statute. In some of the states in livhvie conduct business, the limitations on the
liability of limited partners for the obligationd a limited partnership have not been clearly disthéd.

We are dependent upon key personnel, and the fegs\aces of any of our key personnel could adhgraffect our operations.

Our continued success depends to a consideraldetaxion the abilities and efforts of the senionagement of our general partner,
particularly William Casey McManemin, its Chief Exgive Officer, James E. Raley, its Chief Operatfficer, and H. C. Allen, Jr., its Chief
Financial Officer. The loss of the services of afithese key personnel could have a material adwefsct on our results of operations. We
have not obtained insurance or entered into empboyrmagreements with any of these key personnel.
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We are dependent on service providers who assistthproviding Schedule K-1 tax statements tounitholders.

There are a very limited number of service firmet tturrently perform the detailed computations eeed provide each unitholder with
estimated depletion and other tax information sisaithe unitholder in various United States incdeecomputations. There are also very few
publicly traded limited partnerships that need ¢hesrvices. As a result, the future costs and tives$ of providing Schedule Ktax statemen
to our unitholders is uncertain.

Tax Risks

The tax consequences to a unitholder of the owipeesid sale of common units will depend in parttoa unitholder’s tax circumstances.
Each unitholder should, therefore, consult suchthoider’'s own tax advisor about the federal, statel local tax consequences of the
ownership of common units.

We have not received a ruling or assurances fran®8 or any state or local taxing authority on angtters affecting us.

We have not requested, and will not request, aliggfrom the Internal Revenue Service, or IRSany state or local taxing authority
with respect to owning and disposing of our commbits or any other matter. It may be necessarggort to administrative or court
proceedings in an effort to sustain some or athose conclusions or positions taken or expresgad pand some or all of those conclusions or
positions ultimately may not be sustained. Ourhaiders and general partner will bear, directlynolirectly, the costs of any contest with the
IRS or other taxing authority.

We will be subject to federal income tax and pdgsibrtain state corporate income or franchise &ieve are classified as a corporation
and not as a partnership for federal income taxgmses.

As stated above, we have not requested, and willaguest, any ruling from the IRS as to our statia partnership for federal income
tax purposes. If the IRS were to challenge ourrf@dacome tax status, such a challenge could r@sah audit of our unitholders’ tax returns
and adjustments to items on their tax returnsahaunrelated to their ownership of our commonsunit addition, our unitholders would bear
the cost of any expenses incurred in connectioh arntexamination of their personal tax returns.

If we were taxable as a corporation for federabime tax purposes in any taxable year, our incomi@sglosses and deductions would be
reflected on our tax return rather than being matis®ugh proportionately to our unitholders, and wet income would be taxed at corporate
rates. In addition, some or all of the distribuanade to our unitholders would be treated as dihddncome without offset for depletion, and
distributions would be reduced as a result of #uefal, state and local taxes paid by us.

The foregoing discussion relates to federal inctames and possible application of certain statetlewrporate income taxes and/or
franchise taxes.

The IRS could reallocate items of income, gainudédn and loss between transferors and transfeocée®mmon units if the IRS does not
accept our monthly convention for allocating suemis.

In general, each of our items of income, gain, bores deduction will, for federal income tax purpgdee determined annually, and one
twelfth of each annual amount will be allocatedhose unitholders who hold common units on theBastness day of each month in that year.
In certain circumstances we may make these allmtain connection with extraordinary or nonrecigravents on a more frequent basis. As a
result, transferees of our common units may beatkxl items of our income, gain, loss and deduegatized by us prior to the date of their
acquisition of our common units. There is no specitithority addressing the utilization of this lmad of allocating items of income, gain, loss
and deduction by a publicly traded partnership sagchs between transferors and transferees ajritsnon units. If this method is determined
to be an unreasonable
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method of allocation, our income, gain, loss andud&on would be reallocated among our unithol@erd our general partner, and our
unitholders may have more taxable income or lessbie loss. Our general partner is authorized tisecour method of allocation between
transferors and transferees, as well as amongtbar onitholders whose common units otherwise damyng a taxable period, to conform to a
method permitted or required by the Internal Reee@ode and the regulations or rulings promulgatedeunder.

Our unitholders may not be able to deduct losseatable to their common units.

Any losses relating to our unitholders’ common sinill be losses related to portfolio income aneirtlability to use such losses may be
limited.

Our unitholders’ partnership tax information may bedited.

We will furnish our unitholders with a Schedule Kak statement that sets forth their allocable eslofiincome, gains, losses and
deductions. In preparing this schedule, we will uagous accounting and reporting conventions aribus depreciation and amortization
methods we have adopted. This schedule may nat gie¢sult that conforms to statutory or regulateguirements or to administrative
pronouncements of the IRS. Further, our tax retoay be audited, and any such audit could resw@hiaudit of our unitholders’ individual
income tax returns as well as increased liabilitiesaxes because of adjustments resulting fragratidit. An audit of our unitholders’ returns
also could be triggered if the tax information tiglg to their common units is not consistent whik Schedule K-1 that we are required to
provide to the IRS.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income @ tagable loss with respect to their common ufiitisd IRS does not respect our method
for determining the adjusted tax basis of their omm units.

We have adopted a reporting convention that willd@ our unitholders to track the basis of thedividual common units or unit groups
and use this basis in calculating their basis adfjests under Section 743 of the Internal Revenwe@md gain or loss on the sale of common
units. This method does not comply with an IRSngilihat requires a portion of the combined taxdatall common units to be allocated to
each of the common units owned by a unitholder upeale or disposition of less than all of the canmnits and may be challenged by the
IRS. If such a challenge is successful, our uniteid may have to recognize more taxable incomessrthxable loss with respect to common
units disposed of and common units they continueotd.

Tax-exempt investors may recognize unrelated bssitaxable income.

Generally, unrelated business taxable income, oFIU@an arise from a trade or business unrelatedg@xempt purposes of the tax-
exempt entity that is regularly carried on by eitthee tax-exempt entity or a partnership in which tax-exempt entity is a partner. However,
UBTI does not apply to interest income, royaltiegl(ding overriding royalties) or net profits inésts, whether the royalties or net profits are
measured by production or by gross or taxable ircrom the property. Pursuant to the provisionswfpartnership agreement, our general
partner shall use all reasonable efforts to preusritom realizing income that would constitute UBH addition, our general partner is
prohibited from incurring certain types and amouwftsrdebtedness and from directly owning workintgrests or cost bearing interests and, in
the event that any of our assets become workimggests or cost bearing interests, is requiredsm@asuch interests to the operating partnel
subject to the reservation of a net profits ovémddoyalty interest. However, it is possible tiaat may realize income that would constitute
UBTI in an effort to maximize unitholder value.

Tax consequences of certain Net Profits Interestsiacertain.

We are prohibited from owning working interestscost-bearing interests. At the time of the creatibthe Minerals NPI, we assigned to
the operating partnership all rights in any suchking interests or cost-bearing interests that magitnsequently be created from the mineral
properties that were and are subject of the Miseral
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NPI. As additional working interests and other -bearing interests are created out of such mineaderties, they are owned by the operating
partnership pursuant to such original assignment,vee have executed various documents since tlagianeof the Minerals NP to confirm
such treatment under the original assignment. ffeament could be characterized differently bylf8, and in such a case we are unable to
predict, with certainty, all of the income tax cegsences relating to the Minerals NP1 as it reltdesich working interests and other cost-
bearing interests.

Our unitholders may not be entitled to deductiarspercentage depletion with respect to our oil avadural gas interests.

Our unitholders will be entitled to deductions tbe greater of either cost depletion or (if othaevallowable) percentage depletion with
respect to the oil and natural gas interests oviayags. However, percentage depletion is generabiylable to a unitholder only if he qualifies
under the independent producer exemption contam#uk Internal Revenue Code. For this purposén@ependent producer is a person not
directly or indirectly involved in the retail sabé oil, natural gas, or derivative products or tperation of a major refinery. If a unitholder does
not qualify under the independent producer exemptie generally will be restricted to deductionsdzhon cost depletion.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income @ tagable loss on an ongoing basis if the IRS dogésaccept our method of allocating
depletion deductions.

The Internal Revenue Code requires that incomae, ¢@8s and deduction attributable to appreciatedepreciated property that is
contributed to a partnership in exchange for angaship interest in the partnership must be alkxtab that the contributing partner is charged
with, or benefits from, gain or unrealized lossereed to as “Built-in Gain” and “Built-in Lossfespectively, associated with the property a
time of its contribution to the partnership. Ourtparship agreement provides that the adjustethasis of the oil and natural gas properties
contributed to us is allocated to the contributiragtners for the purpose of separately determidamgetion deductions. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale of property contributedisowill be allocated to the partners that conteluthe property, in proportion to their
percentage interest in the contributed propertyake into account any Built-in Gain or Built-in & This method of allocating Built-in Gain
and Built-in Loss is not specifically permitted byited States Treasury regulations, and the IRS chajlenge this method. Such a challenge,
if successful, could cause our unitholders to racamore taxable income or less taxable loss amnagoing basis in respect of their common
units.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income & tagable loss on an ongoing basis if the IRS dogsiccept our method of determining
a unitholder’s share of the basis of partnershipperty.

Our general partner utilizes a method of calcutpgach unitholder’s share of the basis of partiestoperty that results in an aggregate
basis for depletion purposes that reflects thelmse price of common units as paid by the unitholfleis method is not specifically authori:
under applicable Treasury regulations, and thertR$ challenge this method. Such a challenge, fesgful, could cause our unitholders to
recognize more taxable income or less taxabledosmn ongoing basis in respect of their commorsunit

The ratio of the amount of taxable income that fagllallocated to a unitholder to the amount of ctitt will be distributed to a unitholder
uncertain, and cash distributed to a unitholder nmay be sufficient to pay tax on the income wecalle to a unitholder.

The amount of taxable income realized by a unitioldill be dependent upon a number of factors uiclg: (i) the amount of taxable
income recognized by us; (ii) the amount of anyngatognized by us that is attributable to specifiset sales that may be wholly or partially
attributable to Built-in Gain and the resultingoaltion of such gain to a unitholder, dependinghenasset being sold; (iii) the amount of basis
adjustment pursuant to the Internal Revenue Codiade to a unitholder based on the purchase fiwicany common
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units and the amount by which such price was greatkess than a unitholder’s proportionate shéiiaside tax basis of our assets attributable
to the common units when the common units werehasged; and (iv) the method of depletion availabla tnitholder. Therefore, it is not
possible for us to predict the ratio of the amafrtexable income that will be allocated to a uoitler to the amount of cash that will be
distributed to a unitholder.

A unitholder may lose his status as a partner afRartnership for federal income tax purposes ifléreds our common units to a short se
to cover a short sale of such common units.

If a unitholder loans his common units to a sheles to cover a short sale of common units, he beygonsidered as having disposed of
his ownership of those common units for federabine tax purposes. If so, the unitholder would mykr be a partner of our Partnership for
tax purposes with respect to those common uniteigtine period of the loan and may recognize gailoss from the disposition. As a result,
during this period, any of our income, gain, lossleduction with respect to those common units @awlt be reportable, and any cash
distributions received for those common units wdugdully taxable and may be treated as ordinacgnime.

If we are not notified (either directly or throughbroker) of a sale or other transfer of commontsjrsome distributions and federal income
tax information or reports with respect to suchtamhay not be provided to the purchaser or othandferee of the units and may instead
continue to be provided to the original transferor.

If our transfer agent or any other nominee holdiogmmon units on behalf of a partner is not timedyifred, and a proper transfer of
ownership is not recorded on the appropriate baokisrecords, of a sale or other transfer of comomits, some distributions and federal
income tax information or reports with respecthitese common units may not be made or providedettrémsferee of the units and may insi
continue to be made or provided to the originaisfaror. Notwithstanding a transferee’s failuredoeive distributions and federal income tax
information or reports from us with respect to thesits, the IRS may contend that such transferaepartner for federal income tax purposes
and that some allocations of income, gain, losgealuction by us should have been reported by saokferee. Alternatively, the IRS may
contend that the transferor continues to be a eaftr federal income tax purposes and that alionatof income, gain, loss or deduction by us
should have been reported by such transferorelfrdmsferor is not treated as a partner for fédiecame tax purposes, any cash distributions
received by such transferor with respect to thesfierred units following the transfer would be yuthxable as ordinary income to the transft

A sale or exchange of 50% or more of the totalr@dts in our capital and profits within a 12-mongtériod could result in adverse tax
consequences to a unitholder.

We will terminate for federal income tax purpodethére is a sale or exchange of 50% or more ofdte interests in our capital and
profits within a 12-month period. A termination wduesult in the closing of our taxable year farratholder. As a result, if a unitholder has a
different taxable year than we have, he may beiredto include his allocable share of our incogedn, loss, deduction, credits and other
items from both the taxable year ending prior ®ykar of our termination and the short taxable geding at the time of our termination in
same taxable year. A termination also could réaydenalties if we were unable to determine thattdrmination occurred.

Foreign, state and local taxes could be withheldaorounts otherwise distributable to a unitholder.

A unitholder may be required to file tax returnsld® subject to tax liability in the foreign, statelocal jurisdictions where he resides
in each state or local jurisdiction in which we bassets or otherwise do business. We also masgbé@ed to withhold state income tax from
distributions otherwise payable to a unitholde atate income tax may be withheld by others omltgypayments to us.
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Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this report that are ndbfhial facts (including any statements concernilamns and objectives of managemen
future operations or economic performance, or apsioms or forecasts related thereto), are forwankihg statements. These statements can
be identified by the use of forward-looking termiogy including “may,” “believe,” “will,” “expect,”“anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue” or
other similar words. These statements discussdigypectations, contain projections of resultspafrations or of financial condition or state
other forward-looking information.

These forward-looking statements are made based mpmagement’s current plans, expectations, eggnassumptions and beliefs
concerning future events impacting us and, theegforvolve a number of risks and uncertainties.dAlgtion that forward-looking statements
are not guarantees and that actual results cofi&t diaterially from those expressed or impliedha forward-looking statements for a number
of important reasons, including those discusse@utidisk Factors” and elsewhere in this report.

You should read these statements carefully bedheyemay discuss our expectations about our fugaréormance, contain projections
our future operating results or our future finahc@ndition, or state other forward-looking infortizen. Before you invest, you should be aware
that the occurrence of any of the events hereinriesd in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this mpould substantially harm our business,
results of operations and financial condition amat ipon the occurrence of any of these eventdrading price of our common units could
decline, and you could lose all or part of yourdstment.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Facilities

Our office in Dallas consists of 11,847 square &ddeased office space. The operating partnersiips a field office in Hooker,
Oklahoma and leases part of an office in Amarillexas.

Properties
We own two categories of properties: Royalty Propsrand Net Profits Interests.

Royalty Properties

We own Royalty Properties representing producirgjraonproducing mineral, royalty, overriding royalhet profits and leasehold
interests in properties located in 574 countiesarishes in 25 states. Acreage amounts listedrhexpresent our best estimates based on
information provided to us as a royalty owner. Do¢he significant number of individual deeds, Esaand similar instruments involved in the
acquisition and development of the Royalty Propsrliy us or our predecessors, acreage amountskgeetsto change as new information
becomes available. In addition, as a royalty owoer,access to information concerning activity apérations on the Royalty Properties is
limited. Most of our producing properties are sgbje old leases and other contracts pursuant tohake are not entitled to well information.
Some of our newer leases provide for access tmigalhdata and other information. We may have kahiiccess to public data in some areas
through third party subscription services. Consatyethe exact number of wells producing from ditlidg on the Royalty Properties is not
determinable. The primary manner by which we wéitbme aware of activity on the Royalty Propertiethée receipt of division orders or other
correspondence from operators or purchasers.
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Acreage Summary

The following table sets forth as of December 302 a summary of our gross and net, where appicabres of mineral, royalty,
overriding royalty and leasehold interests, andragilation of the number of counties and parishresstates in which these interests are
located. The majority of our net mineral acreswarieased. Acreage amounts may not add across dwetiapping ownership among
categories.

Overriding
Mineral Royalty Royalty Leasehold Total
Number of State 25 17 17 8 25
Number of Counties/Parish 46& 19C 137 34 574
Gross Acre 2,308,26. 617,08 208,75¢ 37,33¢ 3,122,86
Net Acres (where applicabl 355,69: — — — 355,69:

Our net interest in production from royalty, ovdinig royalty and leasehold interests is based aseleoyalty and other third-party
contractual terms, which vary from property to prdp. Consequently, net acreage ownership in thatgories is not determinable. Our net
interest in production from properties in which @xen a royalty or overriding royalty interest maydféected by royalty terms negotiated by
the mineral interest owners in such tracts and thssees. Our interest in the majority of thesgperties is perpetual in nature. However, a
minor portion of the properties are subject to 'and conditions pursuant to which a portion ofiaterest may terminate upon cessation of
production.

The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ109, the combined summary of total gross andwle¢ie applicable) acres of mineral,
royalty, overriding royalty and leasehold interésteach of the states in which these interestéoarged.

State Gross Net State Gross Net
Alabama 106,05¢ 7,797 Missouri 344 43
Arkansas 47,43¢ 15,73. Montana 281,89( 62,85(
California 1,451 162 Nebraske 3,36( 257
Colorado 22,88( 1,42¢ New Mexico 42,41( 2,48¢
Florida 88,83: 24,24¢ New York 23,077 18,44(
Georgia 3,67¢  1,02¢ North Dakote 293,25. 37,69
Illinois 4,72¢ 88t Oklahoma 230,56( 16,80¢
Indiana 303 115 Pennsylvanii 9,51z 4,841
Kansas 13,98! 2,38% South Dakotz 14,407 1,26¢
Kentucky 1,99¢ 555 Texas 1,641,19' 141,58:
Louisiana 131,07 2,41t Utah 5,931 20C
Michigan 54,23¢  2,62: Wyoming 28,24¢ 1,25¢
Mississippi 72,02¢ 8,601

Leasing Activity

We received cash payments in the amount of $663]J0€iig 2009 attributable to lease bonus on 47eleasd six pooling elections in
lands located in 22 counties and parishes in faies. These leases reflected bonus payments gangito $1,200/acre and initial royalty ter
ranging up to 30%. Many of these leases contaiitiadel overriding royalty interests and provisidios optional working interest participation
in subsequent wells, back-in working interestsragfyout or escalating royalty terms.

We received cash payments in the amount of $61d06i6g the fourth quarter of 2009 attributablegade bonus on eight leases of our
interests in lands located in six counties andspas in two states. These leases reflected boyusapas ranging up to $400/acre and initial
royalty terms ranging up to 25%.
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The following table sets forth a summary of leased pooling elections consummated during 2007 gind2009.

2009 2008 2007
Consummated Leas
Number 53 51 107
Number of State 4 4 6
Number of Countie 22 19 27
Average Royalty 23.4&% 25.(% 24.1%
Average Bonus, $/aci $ 56t $ 39¢ $ 22z
Total Lease Boni—cash basi $663,00( $441,00( $609,00(

Three leases were granted for no bonus consideratid009, which reflected royalty terms of 25%.ef@ge bonus and royalty terms
reflected above include these three leases. Ose {gas granted in 2009, which included (in additmroyalty or bonus) an overriding royalty
interest, back-in working interest or optional wingkinterest participation. Average royalty terreflected above do not reflect these additional
interests. Amounts reflected above may differ frmun consolidated financial statements, which aes@nted on an accrual basis. Average
royalty and average bonus exclude amounts attiibeita pooling elections. Payments received forgjasage, shut-in and delay rental
payments, coal royalty, surface use agreemeritmtiibn judgments and settlement proceeds arecteflén our consolidated financial
statements in various categories including, butindted to, other operating revenues and otheorine.

Net Profits | nterests

We own net profits overriding royalty interestsféreed to as the Net Profits Interests) in variptgperties owned by the operating
partnership. We receive monthly payments equalth§®% of the net profits actually realized by tipeiating partnership from these prope
in the preceding month. In the event costs exceeelnues on a cash basis in a given month for piepesubject to a Net Profits Interest, no
payment is made and any deficit is accumulatedcanged over and reflected in the following montb&culation of net profit.

We own five separate Net Profits Interests, fouwvbich were created in connection with the combdamain 2003 and one immaterial
deficit Net Profits Interest that was subsequeatbated. Three of these Net Profits Interests baea in a continuous profit status other than
temporary deficits in that revenues have exceedsts @nd cash payments have been made by theinggrattnership to us each quarter. The
purpose of such Net Profits Interests is to av@garticipation as a working interest or othet-txsring owner that could result in unrelated
business taxable income. Net profits interest paymare not considered unrelated business taxatenie for tax purposes. The fourth Net
Profits Interest, referred to as the Minerals Nfals continuously had costs that exceed revenuest Becember 31, 2009, cumulative
operating and development costs presented in tloeviag table, which include amounts equivalenatointerest charge, exceeded cumulative
revenues of the Minerals NPI, resulting in a curtivéadeficit. All cumulative deficits (which represt cumulative excess of operating and
development costs over revenue received) are H@®% by our general partner until the Minerals K#glovers the deficit amount. Once in
profit status, we will receive the Net Profits Irgst payments attributable to these properties.cOnsolidated financial statements do not
reflect activity attributable to properties subjexziNet Profits Interests that are in a deficititaConsequently, net profits interest payments,
production sales volumes and prices, and oil and ha&ral gas reserves set forth in other portions oftis annual report do not reflect
amounts attributable to the Minerals NPI, which indudes all of the operating partnership’s Fayettevie Shale working interest
properties in Arkansas.
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The following tables set forth cash receipts argthdisements, production volumes and reservesiatifite to the Minerals NPI from
inception through 2004 and the calendar years #@moigh 2009.

Minerals NPI Cash Basis Result:
Year Ended December 31,
(in Thousands)

Inception
through
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Total

Cash received for reven $1,011 $1,447 $2,487 $3,25¢ $6,01€¢ $3,40¢ $17,62¢
Cash paid for operating co 151 24¢ 452 521 853 86t 3,091
Cash paid for development co 1,53¢ 1,08¢ 1,691 2,63t 4,77¢ 4,34¢ 16,07:
Budgeted capital expenditur 90& 89C 1,79¢
Net cash (paid) receive $ 674 $ 11z $ 344 $ 99 $(520) $(2,695H $(3,339)
Cumulative NPI Defici $ (674 $(562) $ (21§ $ (119 $ (639 $(3,339)

The revenue amounts, the production volumes, amgribved reserves presented include only propgat@ducing revenue. The
development cost amounts pertain to more propdfsasthe properties producing revenue due to tidifferences between operating
partnership expenditures and oil and natural gadymtion and payments to the operating partnership.

Minerals NPI Cash Basis Production
Year ended December 31,

Inception
through
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Total
Natural Gas mc 138,65° 126,167 190,90: 291,27¢ 418,74 596,34. 1,762,08!
Oil & Condensate bk 5,11¢ 9,434 17,44 19,66: 22,48( 21,10¢ 95,24:
Indicated Gas Price, $/m $ 737 $ 72¢ $ 658 $ 85 $ 374/ % 6.17
Indicated Oil/Condensate Price, $/I $ 545¢ $ 6108 $ 629 $1009¢ $ 48.8( $ 66.1¢

The indicated prices set forth above are calculbtedividing each yeas’ gross revenues for each product by the produgthmme of the
corresponding product. Cash received for revencledes minor amounts of non-product revenue. Satulation does not necessarily reflect
contractual terms for sales and may be affectetdngportation costs, location differentials, giyadind gravity adjustments and timing
differences between production and cash receiptgiding release of suspended funds, initial paysgar accumulated sales, or prior period
adjustments.

All Proved Developed and Minerals NPI Reserves
Located in the United States Year ended December 31,
2004@  2005@ 2006  2007@ 2008 @ 2009 @ 2009 @

Proved Reserve

Natural Gas (mmcf 278 313 532 1,447 1,99 3,23¢  3,01¢
Oil & Condensate (mbbils 7 32 46 34 65 66 65
Future Net Revenues ($ in thousar $1,352 $3,39¢ $4,30¢ $10,52¢ $9,341 $15,84: $8,95(
Standardized Measure ($ in thousar $1,03: $2,65F $3,40f $ 7,25¢ $6,53¢ $11,07¢ $6,451]

(1) Based on unweighted arithmetic average of the dias-of-the-month price of oil and natural g
(2) Based on yeend pricing of oil and natural g.

Amounts in the above tables reflect the operateangnership’s ownership of the subject propertiest Rrofits Interest payments to us, if
any, will equal 96.97% of the cumulative net pofitctually received by the operating partnershifbatable to the subject properties. The
above production sales volumes, indicated pricésno natural gas reserves, and financial inforomaattributable to the Minerals NPI may
be indicative of future results of the Minerals N#Pld may not indicate when the deficit status mayand when Net Profits Interests payment
may begin from the Minerals NPI.
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The Minerals NPI includes numerous opportunitiestie operating partnership to participate as &imgrinterest owner in drilling
activity on lands in which we owned a mineral oyalty interest as of the date such Minerals NPI erasted. Most of these opportunities are
evidenced by a contractual option, but not thegattion, to participate in activity located in defthlands and leases, although some arise by
non-contractual means or by operation of law. Viktirard to the opportunities evidenced by a coniedaption, the operating partnership’s
decision to exercise these options and particiasit working interest owner is made on a well-byl-besis and only in the event a third party
proposes to drill a well subject to the contractyation. With regard to the opportunities to papéte as a working interest owner that arise
non-contractually or by operation of law, we obtairare provided those opportunities due to thmastof persons that we do not control.
Thus, we are unable to project when wells may bkedy whether the operating partnership may diegarticipate, or otherwise end up
participating, in such drilling or the magnitudetbé corresponding investment, either individualtyin the aggregate, with respect to the
Minerals NPI. In the event the operating partngrsties elect to participate pursuant to these gtior otherwise ends up so participating per
force of certain non-contractual relationships pioperation of law, the Minerals NPI deficit isdily to increase. Regardless of the operating
partnership’s future voluntary or involuntary peipiation, we believe net profits interest paymeifitany, made upon the Minerals NPI's first
reaching profit status will be minimal as developinef these properties, and consequently the dpgrpartnershis payments of developmi
expenditures associated therewith, is likely toticmre for at least five years. See the discussiateu“Drilling Activity” below for additional
information on some of these working interest pgytition options and possibilities.

Acreage Summary

The following tables set forth, as of DecemberZI09, information concerning properties owned l®/dperating partnership and sub
to the Net Profits Interests, including the MinerBlPI properties. Acreage amounts listed undersebald” reflect gross acres leased by the
operating partnership and the working interesteljaet acres) in those properties. Acreage amdisted under “Mineral’reflect gross acres
which the operating partnership owns a minerakr@gtand the undivided mineral interest (net adref)ose properties. The operating
partnerships interest in these properties may be unleaseskdelay others or a combination thereof. Acreageuatsamay not add across dus
overlapping ownership among categories.

Mineral Royalty Leasehold Total
Number of State 11 2 6 12
Number of Counties/Parish 58 2 13 65
Gross Acre: 48,57( 64C 109,54 158,75:
Net Acres 5,40¢ — 83,86¢ 89,27(

The following table reflects the states in whick #creage amounts listed above are located.

Mineral/Royalty Leasehold Total

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Oklahoma 11,20( 95t 79,861 74,03: 91,06! 74,98¢
Kansas 64C 20 7,03t 7,03t 7,67t 7,05¢
Arkansas 67¢ 30¢ 19,78 2,631 20,46¢ 2,94t
All Others 36,69] 4,12 2,86( 162 39,55! 4,28¢
Totals 49,21( 540t  109,54. 83,86 158,75: 89,27(

The operating partnership owns working interesteva¢he currently producing horizons in 47,360 g/d$,960 net acres in Texas
County, Oklahoma. The operating partnership has fime to time farmed out its leasehold interestgdrtions of these lands, reserving an
overriding royalty interest therein, and will cotsi additional exploration or development of thiesels as circumstances warrant. The
leasehold acreage includes all of the acreageeifrdlyetteville Shale properties of Arkansas in Whie have the right to participate.
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Costs Incurred

The following table sets forth information regamglit00% of the costs incurred on a cash basis bggkeating partnership during the
periods indicated in connection with the propertiaderlying the Net Profits Interests.

Years ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

(in thousands)
Acquisition costs $35,24¢ $ — $ —
Development cosi® 5,791 5,79¢ 3,821
Total $41,03¢ $5,79¢ $3,821

(1) The years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 260R@le$2,647,000, $5,698,000 and $5,753,000, ré&spe attributable to NPIs not yet in pay stat

Productive Well Summary

The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ109, the combined number of producing wells onpttoperties subject to the Net
Profits Interests, including the Minerals NPI. Grogells refer to wells in which a working interésbwned. Net wells are determined by
multiplying gross wells by the working interesttiose wells.

Productive
Wells/Units (1)
Location Gross Net
Oklahoma 20C 120.:
Kansas 20 20.C
All others 224 10.¢
Total 444 151

(1) Multiple well units operated by someone other ttt@noperating partnership and in which we own Nefi® Interests are included as one gross \

Drilling Activity

We received division orders for or otherwise idiedi 353 new wells completed on our Royalty Praperin 11 states during 2009. Forty-
nine new wells were completed and we identifiecenirells that were completed in prior years on oet Rrofits Interests properties, all loca
in four states during 2009, with 10 additional wefi various stages of drilling or completion optienas at year-end. Selected new wells and the
royalty interests owned by us and the working agicrevenue interests owned by the operating pafieare summarized below.
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(1) WI means the working interest owned by the opegapiartnership and subject to the Net Profits Irste

(2) NRI means the net revenue interest attributab&taoyalty interest or to the operating partngy’s royalty and working interest, which is subjecthe Net Profits Interes

This table does not include wells drilled in they€ieville Shale trend as they are detailed inlsssquent discussion and table.

DMLP

DMOLP Test Rates per day

County/Parish Operator Well Name '\zgl wi @) NRI (@) Gas, mc!  Oil, bbls
Logan XTO Energy Winters, Bobby -18 2.7%% 2,03¢
Logan XTO Energy Turner Unit ~18 2.7%% 1,96¢
Logan XTO Energy K K Williams #0€-03 0.92% 5,40¢
De Sota Comstock Oil & Ga HA RA SUA; Robert Crews #3AL 2.7% 2,35(
De Sota Comstock Oil & Ga: Lena Crews #5 Al 2.7%% 1,70C

Mountrail EOG Resource Austin 2(¢-29 H 2.97% 587 1,59t
Cadda St. Mary Land & Exp  Reiss Trust -16 1.32% 1.32% 9,89¢

Ellis Plains Marketing LF Raiders -27H 3.7%  9.06% 1,142 17¢

Roger Mills  Burlington Resource Troy Miller #17-11 1.67% 2,80z 5

Washita Chesapeake Operatii  Schones -10H 1.04% 4,33 16€
Hidalgo Chesapeake Operatii  Barton Gas Unit #. 3.15% 2,43¢
Matagorde Square Mile Energ Highwire #1 Gas Uni 6.67% 1,08¢
Shelby Devon Energy Corg Oliver Gas Unit £ 0.36% 19,62
Starr ElPaso E& P Co.,,L  Guerra USA GL“D” #17 8.1% 6,80(
Starr RAM Operating Co Garza Hitchcock #1 2.65% 2,491
Tarrant Chesapeake Operatii  Bass 311 B #2} 20.0(% 2,092
Wheeler Devon Energy Corg Effie Hayes #1-5H 3.13% 4,371
Wheeler Kaise-Francis Oil Co  Burrell AW 104 0.71% 8,96/
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Additional information concerning selected recesthvty is summarized below:

Fayetteville Shale Trend of Northern ArkansasVe own varying undivided perpetual mineral intéseetaling 23,336/11,464 gross/net
acres located in Cleburne, Conway, Faulkner, Frapkbhnson, Pope, Van Buren, and White countielsadsas in an area commonly referred
to as the “Fayetteville Shale” trend of the ArkoBesin. One hundred ninety-nine wells have been gteinon the lands as of December 31,
2009, of which the operating partnership has agrést in 129. In total, 166 wells had been spuf,Hatl been completed as producers and 23
were in various stages of drilling or completioremgtions. Wells that have been proposed to besdrilly the operator but for which permits
have not yet been issued by the Arkansas Oil & Gasmission are not reflected in this number. Avdéaest results for wells completed in
2009, along with ownership interests owned by usiaterests owned by the operating partnershipestitp the Minerals NPI, are summarized
in the following table.

DMLP DMOLP Gas Test Rates
County Operator Well Name NRI () W@ NRI @ Mcf per day
Cleburne SEECO Mulliniks 9-12 #t-35H36 1.71¢€ 3.661 2.74¢ 5,01t
Cleburne SEECO Mulliniks 9-12 #¢-35H36 1.99% 2.841 2.13C 5,02:
Cleburne SEECO Mulliniks 9-12 #¢-35H2 1.401 1.99: 1.49¢ 4,32
Conway Chesapeake¢ Collinsworth -16 #1-10H3 2.33¢ 4.59¢ 3.44¢ 4,81°F
Conway SEECO Charles Reeves-15 #:-10H3 2.95¢ 4.72¢ 3.54¢ 3,97¢
Conway SEECO Charles Reeves-15 #£-10H3 2.94: 4.70¢ 3.532 3,88¢
Conway SEECO Polk €15 #430H 5.93( 5.561 4.22( 2,43¢
Conway Chesapeak Collinsworth °-16 #.-10H 2.34: 4.61¢ 3.46( 4,121
Conway SEECO Jerome Carr-15 #431H 2.18¢ 3.79¢ 2.84i 3,911
Conway SEECO Deltic Timber 16 #4-36H31 1.38¢ 2.40( 1.80( 4,62¢
Conway SEECO Charles Reeves-15 #4-10H3 3.03¢ 4.861 3.64¢ 1,89¢
Conway SEECO Bryant ¢-15 #4-32H31 0.98¢ 1.70¢ 1.28: 5,49¢
Faulkner Chesapeak  Glover €13 #:-25H 2.99( 4.80i 3.61¢ 2,43¢
Faulkner Chesapeak  Glover ¢-13 #1-25H 3.22: 7.18¢ 5.64¢ 1,43
Van Buren SEECO Howard Family Trust 1-12 #2-9H16 2.59¢ 4.57¢ 3.432 5,18¢
Van Buren SEECO Handy 1(-12 #t-18H 2.972 6.341 4.76( 3,67¢
Van Buren SEECO Handy 1(-12 #¢-18H 2.972 6.34 4.76( 3,42
Van Buren SEECO Handy 1(-12 #¢18H 2.971 6.344 4.75¢ 2,87¢
Van Buren SEECO Linn 1C-12 #4-8H16 3.79¢ 4.14¢ 3.13¢ 2,76¢
Van Buren SEECO Linn 1C-12 #:-8H16 2.76¢ 3.41% 2.572 3,17¢
Van Buren SEECO Collums-Pennington 1-12 #2-20H 2.34¢ 4.37¢ 3.281 2,22¢
White Chesapeak  Webb ¢-6 #Z-35H 2.34¢ 4.38( 3.28¢ 2,25¢
White Chesapeak  Webb ¢6 #2-35H 2.34¢ 4.38( 3.28¢ 2,25(

(1) WI means the working interest owned by the opegapartnership and subject to the Minerals P

(2) NRI means the net revenue interest attributab&utaoyalty interest or to the operating partney’s royalty and working interest, which is subjecthe Minerals NPI

Set forth below is a summary of all permitting lldrg and completion activity through December 3009 for wells in which we have a
royalty or Net Profits Interest. This includes wedubject to the Minerals NPI, which is currentiydeficit status.

Total

thfgggh Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 to

2006 2007 200€  200¢ 200¢ 200¢ 200¢ Date
New Well Permits 14 35 71 19 20 22 18 19¢
Wells Spuc 10 33 62 22 16 7 16 16€
Wells Complete 6 23 56 13 14 14 14 14C
Royalty Wells in Pay Stati® 1 14 32 14 10 14 2C 10t

(1) Wells in Pay Status means wells for which revenas initially received during the indicated peri
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Our estimated proved reserves as of December 88, Aclude reserves attributable to our royaltgiiest in 115 wells totaling 2.26 bcf.
Proved reserves attributable to working interestsesl by the operating partnership totaled 2.60rb8# wells. These estimates only include
wells for which test rates have been obtained.

Net cash receipts for the Royalty Properties atteble to interests in these lands totaled $1,4®7i® 2009 from 91 wells. Net cash
receipts for the Minerals NPI properties attriblgaio interests in these lands totaled $1,309,aGDD9 from 60 wells. Fourth quarter net cash
receipts for the Royalty Properties and the MireNiPI properties totaled $375,000 from 88 wells $817,000 from 55 wells, respectively.

Horizontal Bakken, Williston Basir-We own varying undivided perpetual mineral int¢ésestaling 70,390/7,602 gross/net acres located
in Burke, Divide, Dunn, McKenzie, Mountrail and Vidims Counties, North Dakota. Operators activehia &rea include Continental
Resources, EOG Resources, Hess Corporation, Mar&h@€ompany, and Whiting Oil & Gas. There haveiba total of 83 wells permitted
on these lands as of December 31, 2009 with 60 ketpbas producers. In all cases we have electet hease our lands and not to pay our
share of well costs, thus becoming a non-consemtimgral owner. According to North Dakota law, nmnsenting owners receive the average
royalty rate from the date of first production avatk-in for their full working interest after thgerator has recovered 150% of drilling and
completion costs. Once 150% payout occurs, the iwgrikiterest will be owned by the operating parshgr and subject to the Minerals NPI.
Non-consenting owners are not entitled to well datziothan public information available from the NoBbkota Industrial Commission. As
December 31, 2009, these wells had achieved 15¢%upa

Set forth below is a summary of all permitting lldrg and completion activity through December 3009 for wells in which we have a
royalty or Net Profits Interest. This includes wsedlubject to the Minerals NPI, which is currentiyai deficit status.

2004 Total

through

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 to

2006 2007 200¢ 200¢ 200¢ 200¢ 200¢ Date
New Well Permits 3 15 4% 0 6 0 14 83
Wells Spuc 2 12 27 11 4 7 6 69
Wells Complete 2 7 23 9 8 9 2 60
Wells in Pay Statu® 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 3

(1) Wells in Pay Status means wells for which revenas initially received during the indicated peri

Appalachian Basir—We own varying undivided perpetual mineral intesestapproximately 31,000/22,000 gross/net acrd®inountie
in southern New York and northern Pennsylvania.rApimately 75% of these net acres are located steea Allegany and western Steuben
Counties, New York, an area which some industrgpreports suggest may be prospective for gas gtiodurom unconventional reservoirs,
including the Marcellus Shale. The New York StagpBrtment of Environmental Conservation has rasttipermitting in the Marcellus shale
pending a regulatory review of high-volume hydraditacturing practices. Development of these ntyaia resources will be limited until this
regulatory issue has been resolved. We continngotator industry activity and encourage dialogughimdustry participants to determine the
proper course of action regarding our interestbimarea.

Barnett Shale—We own producing and nonproducing mineral and ltgyaterests located in Tarrant County, Texas. plaperties
consist of varying undivided mineral and overridinogalty interests in six tracts totaling approxteig 1,820 acres in what is commonly
referred to as the Core Area of the Barnett Shedad. All of the mineral interests were leasedd02to a predecessor of Chesapeake Energy
Corporation, the current operator of and majorityking interest owner in the properties. Approxietat577 acres of the subject lands are
pooled into six units totaling 1,800 acres; appmadely 1,129 acres are developed on a lease babiha remaining lands are leased but not
pooled or drilled upon. As of December 31, 2009n@fis were drilled from 11 padsites located omdjacent to the properties, of which 29
wells were completed for production and six weri#ledt but not yet completed or connected to a fielPermits to drill one additional well
the properties had been issued by regulatory agenci
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Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

The following table reflects the Partnersiiproved developed and total proved reserves agrbeer 31, 2009. The reserves are base
the reports of two independent petroleum engingeronsulting firms: Calhoun, Blair & Associates dtidddleston & Co., Inc. As described
above, the Partnership does not have informatiahviould be available to a company with oil andunatgas operations because detailed
information is not generally available to owners@falty interests. The Partnership’s engineerirmgnager gathers production information and
provides such information to our two independertfieeering consulting firms who extrapolate fromtsirdformation estimates of the reserves
attributable to the Royalty Properties and Net isdhterests based on their expertise in therall matural gas fields where the Royalty
Properties and Net Profits Interests are situatgdyell as publicly available information. Ensurzgmpliance with generally accepted
petroleum engineering principles is the responigibilf the Partnership’s engineering manager. Qwgireeering manager has a bachelor’s
degree in Petroleum Engineering from the Universitpilberta and has worked in the upstream oil matliral gas business in various
capacities since 1996. The engineering managertsegioectly to the chief executive officer. Ouiliehexecutive officer ensures compliance
with SEC guidance. He received his Bachelor of ismmeadegree in Petroleum Engineering from Texas Al&hiversity in 1984 and has been a
Registered Professional Engineer in Texas sinc8.108lhoun Blair & Associates is registered wite Engineering Board of the State of
Texas and has been engaged in the business oftbilatural gas property evaluation since 1998. kaston & Co, Inc. is registered with the
Engineering Board of the State of Texas and has bagaged in the business of oil and natural gaepty evaluation since its formation in
1966. Other than those filed with the SEC, oumested proved reserves have not been filed withauded in any reports to any federal
agency. Copies of the reports prepared by CalhBlair, & Associates and Huddleston & Co., Inc. attaghed hereto as Exhibits 99.1 and ¢

Summary of Oil and Gas Reserves as of Fiscal YeamH based on Average Fiscal-Year Prices

All Proved Developed and located
in the United States

Royalty Properties Net Profits Interests (1) Total
Natural Natural Natural
Oil Gas Oil Gas Oil Gas
Reserves Categon (mbbls) (mmcf) (mbbls) (mmcf) (mbbls) (mmcf)
2009 3,231 34,92 40 25,357 3,271 60,28(

(1) Reserves reflect 96.97% of the corresponding anscasgigned to the operating partner's interests in the properties underlying the NefirInterests

Proved oil and natural gas reserves means theastinguantities of crude oil, natural gas, andnaagas liquids which geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable ogrtim be recoverable in future years from knowsereoirs under existing economic and
operating conditions, i.e., 12 month unweightetharetic average of the first day of the month miaad costs as of the date the estimate is
made. Previously, year-end pricing and costs weeel uPlease see Management'’s Discussion and AsalyBinancial Condition and Results
of Operations—Results of Operations for averagesspatices.

Oil and Gas Reserves as of Fiscal Year-End

All Proved Developed and located in the United Stas
Based on Year-End Oil and Natural Gas Prices

Royalty Properties Net Profits Interests (1) Total
Natural Natural Natural
Oil Gas Oil Gas Oil Gas
Reserves Categon (mbbls) (mmcf) (mbbls) (mmcf) (mbbls) (mmcf)
2009 3,231 35,285 42 25,42¢ 3,27¢ 60,71
2008 3,51« 32,02¢ 56 28,94¢ 3,57( 60,977
2007 3,501 29,55¢ 65 31,70( 3,56¢ 61,25¢
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(1) Reserves reflect 96.97% of the corresponding anscasgigned to the operating partner's interests in the properties underlying the NefirInterests

The Hugoton Field reflected in the Net Profits hetts above is the only significant field, defirredmore than 15% of total proved
developed reserves. Hugoton Field production fer#ist three years is listed below:

Production by Significant Field

Numbers in Thousands

MCFE BOE
200¢ 3,94 65€
200¢ 4,24( 707
2007 4,49¢ 74¢

Title to Properties

We believe we have satisfactory title to all of agsets. Record title to essentially all of ouetshas undergone the appropriate filings in
the jurisdictions in which such assets are locatéte to property may be subject to encumbranéés believe that none of such encumbrances
should materially detract from the value of ourg®dies or from our interest in these propertiestmuld materially interfere with their use in
the operation of our business.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In January 2002, some individuals and an assonigdfled Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oiah regarding the use of natural gas from the virellesidences. The operating partnership
now owns and operates the properties formerly ovimyedorchester Hugoton. These properties contributeajor portion of the Net Profits
Interests amounts paid to us. On April 9, 2007ingikés, for immaterial costs, dismissed with preijce all claims against the operating
partnership regarding such residential gas use€D@aber 4, 2004, the plaintiffs filed severed claiagainst the operating partnership regarding
royalty underpayments, which the Texas County Ris€ourt subsequently dismissed with a grantroktto replead. On January 27, 2006,
of the original plaintiffs again sued the operatpagtnership for underpayment of royalty, seekilagg action certification. On October 1, 2C
the Texas County District Court granted the opegagiartnership’s motion for summary judgment fimdito royalty underpayments.
Subsequently, the District Court denied the pl#istmotion for reconsideration, and the plainfifed an appeal. At present, the litigation
awaits result of the appeal to the Oklahoma Supi@met. An adverse appellate decision could reduceunts we receive from the Net Pro
Interests.

The Partnership and the operating partnershipna@ied in other legal and/or administrative pratiags arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesi@gmificant effect on financial position
or operating results.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF UNITHOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of unitholdiensng the fourth quarter of the year ended DecerBhe2009.
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PART I
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS AND ISS UER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common units began trading on the NASDAQ Natidviarket (now the NASDAQ Global Select Market) leebruary 3, 2003. The
following summarizes the high and low sales infaiiorafor the common units for the period indicat&tie information below reflects inter-
dealer prices without retail mark-up, mark-dowrcommission and may not necessarily represent ataredactions.

2009 2008
High Low High Low
First Quarte! $20.4( $14.37 $22.0C $18.7(
Second Quarte $23.0: $16.0¢ $36.4¢ $20.6¢
Third Quartel $25.7¢ $21.0¢ $35.8¢ $19.2¢
Fourth Quarte $23.8¢ $20.01 $24.0C $14.8(

As of December 31, 2009, there were 12,062 comnnithalders.

Beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2003ggsired by our partnership agreement, we disteihand will continue to distribute,
on a quarterly basis, within 45 days of the enthefquarter, all of our available cash. Availakdstit means all cash and cash equivalents on
hand at the end of that quarter, less any amoucasif reserves that our general partner deterrisimecessary or appropriate to provide for
conduct of its business or to comply with appliealalws or agreements or obligations to which we begubject.

Unitholder cash distributions per common unit foe past four years have been:

Per Unit Amount

2009 2008 2007 2006
First Quartel $0.40120! $0.57230!I $0.461141 $0.72985.
Second Quarte $0.27135. $0.76920! $0.47374! $0.77812!
Third Quartel $0.28696 $0.94847. $0.56050: $0.51608;
Fourth Quarte $0.321541 $0.54208: $0.51462! $0.47859!

Distributions beginning with the second quarteR009 were paid on 29,840,431 units; previous digtidns above were paid on
28,240,431 units. Fourth quarter distributionspzail in February of the following calendar yeautsgtholders of record in January or February
of such following year. The partnership agreemequires the next cash distribution to be paid by ¥, 2010.

Please see “Fourth Quarter 2009 Distribution Ingiddrice” discussion contained in “ltem 7. —Managet’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsgtlidlity and Capital Resources—Distributions” fooguction periods and cash receipts
and weighted average prices corresponding to tiwtHf@uarter 2009 distribution.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofammmon units with the performance of the NASDAQr@wosite Index (the
“NASDAQ Index”) and a peer group index from DecemBg, 2004 through December 31, 2009. The grapimass that at the beginning of
the period, $100 was invested in each of (1) oamroon units, (2) the NASDAQ Index, and (3) the pgmup, and that all distributions or
dividends were reinvested. We do not believe thgtpublished industry or line-dfusiness index accurately reflects our businessorsingly,
we have created a special peer group index camgisficompanies whose royalty trust units are plptraded on the New York Stock
Exchange. Our peer group index includes the ufitseofollowing companies: Cross Timbers Royaltydir Mesa Royalty Trust, Sabine
Royalty Trust, Permian Basin Royalty Trust, HugoRwyalty Trust and the San Juan Basin Royalty Trust

60-Month Cumulative Total Returns
Value of 3100 Invested on December 31, 2004
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
Basis of Presentation
This table should be read in conjunction with thasolidated financial statements and related rintdgded elsewhere in this document.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per unit data)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Total operating revenut $ 43,63: $ 89,92t $ 65,36¢ $ 74,927 $ 79,83:
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 15,59¢ 14,73¢ 15,567 18,47( 20,85¢
Net earnings (loss 21,68: 66,78: 43,04¢ 50,21( 52,77t
Net earnings (loss) per ui 0.72 2.3C 1.4¢ 1.7z 1.82
Cash distribution® 44,72¢ 81,64¢ 57,40 82,29 58,02¢
Cash distributions per ur® 1.5C 2.8C 1.97 2.8¢ 2.0C
Total asset 152,76¢ 139,56: 154,25: 168,42¢ 200,83(
Total liabilities 737 98C 804 62¢ 94t
Partner’ capital 152,03: 138,58: 153,44° 167,80( 199,88!

(1) Because of depletion (which is usually highrethie early years of production), a portion of gwdistribution of revenues from properties représenreturn of a limited partner’s
original investment. Until a limited partner recesvcash distributions equal to his original invesitmin certain circumstances, 100% of such distidms may be deemed to be a return
of capital. Cash distributions by year excludeftheth quarter distribution declared in Januaryhef following year, but include the prior year fttuquarter distribution declared in
January of the current yei

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2009 Overview
Our results during 2009 were strong despite sigaifi drops in natural gas prices and drilling atgtiln most producing areas. Significe

results include the following:

* Netincome of $21.7 millior

» Distributions of $43.3 million to our limited pa#rs;

» Identified 353 new wells located on our Royalty [frdies in 11 state

» Identified 48 new wells located on our Net Profiteerest Properties in four states; ¢

» Consummated 47 leases of our mineral interest dieweloped properties located in 17 counties anidhpes in four state:

Critical Accounting Policies

We utilize the full cost method of accounting faists related to our oil and natural gas propertiesler this method, all such costs are
capitalized and amortized on an aggregate basistibgestimated lives of the properties using thiestof-production method. These
capitalized costs are subject to a ceiling testydweer, which limits such pooled costs to the agate@f the present value of future net revenues
attributable to proved oil and natural gas resedissounted at 10% plus the lower of cost or maviahie of unproved properties. Our
Partnership did not assign any book or market vedueproved properties, including nonproducingatty mineral and leasehold interests.
The full cost ceiling is evaluated at the end aftequarter and when events indicate possible imm@it. No impairments have been recorded
since 2003.

The discounted present value of our proved oil@atdral gas reserves is a major component of tiiagealculation and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aseémts based on engineering and geological anagésent reserve engineers may reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantities of
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natural gas or crude oil reserves based on the Bdorenation. Our reserve estimates are prepareddgpendent consultants. The passage of
time provides more qualitative information regagimeserve estimates, and revisions are made togsionates based on updated information.
However, there can be no assurance that more isigmifrevisions will not be necessary in the fut@ignificant downward revisions could
result in an impairment representing a non-cashgeht earnings. In addition to the impact on daltton of the ceiling test, estimates of
proved reserves are also a major component ofaioelation of depletion.

While the quantities of proved reserves requirestaritial judgment, the associated prices of oil @atdral gas reserves that are included
in the discounted present value of our reserveslaestively determined. Effective December 31,2068e ceiling test calculation requires use
of the unweighted arithmetic average of the fiest df the month price during the 1enth period ending on the balance sheet date @std i
effect as of the last day of the accounting peniduich are generally held constant for the lifahaf properties. As a result, the present value is
not necessarily an indication of the fair valudlaf reserves. Oil and natural gas prices havertdatly been volatile, and the prevailing prices
at any given time may not reflect our Partnershgu’¢he industry’s forecast of future prices.

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally accepteth@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assush it affect the reported amounts of assetsiabifities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finamstialements and the reported amounts of revenuksxg@enses during the reporting period. For
example, estimates of uncollected revenues anddieppenses from Royalty Properties and Net Préfierests operated by non-affiliated
entities are particularly subjective due to thebility to gain accurate and timely information. Tefore, actual results could differ from those
estimates. Please see “Item 1. Business—CustomérBricing” and “ltem 2. Properties—Royalty Propest for additional discussion.

New Accounting Standards

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB@cAunting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 105-10&eneral Principles,
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles definestlew hierarchy for U.S. GAAP and explains howRR&B will use its Accounting
Standards Codification as the sole source forudharitative guidance. FASB ASC 105-10-5 replacEAS 162, The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, which was issueiay 2008. It was effective for all reporting pet®ending after September 15, 2009, and
we have revised all references to pre-codificaG@#xAP in our financial statements. It did not haveaterial impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

FASB ASC 80510, Business Combinations, among other thingsbksit@s principles and requirements for how theuaeqin a busine:
combination (a) recognizes and measures in itailmh statements the identifiable assets acquiredljabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interest in the acquired busineBschanges the accounting for contingent consiaerain process research and development,
and restructuring costs, c) expenses acquisititate costs as incurred, (d) recognizes and mesasueegoodwill acquired in the business
combination or a gain from a bargain purchase,(@hdetermines what information to disclose to émakers of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of th&r®ss combination. We adopted FASB ASC 805-1¢ darauary 1, 2009 with no material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

FASB ASC 855-10, Subsequent Events, incorporateatbounting and disclosure requirements for sulesgegevents into U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. FASB ASC 855-1fbthices new terminology, defines a date througlthviianagement must evaluate
subsequent events, and lists the circumstances ueh an entity must recognize and disclose essentransactions occurring after the
balance sheet date. We adopted FASB ASC 855-10Jase 30, 2009, which was the required effectized
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FASB Accounting Standards Update (“ASU") 2010-03wssued on January 6, 2010, and aligns the cusileaitd natural gas reserve
estimation and disclosure requirements of ASC 98R those in thesEC Final Rule Modernization of Oil and Gas Repaytssued
December 31, 2008. The rules only apply prospegtiae a change in estimate. The most significargradments to the reserve and disclosure
requirements include the following:

» Commodity Prices—Economic producibility of resereesl discounted cash flows will be based on an igived arithmetic
average of the first day of the month commoditg@uring the 12-month period ending on the balahest date unless
contractual arrangements designate the price tsbe.

» Disclosure of Unproved Reser—Probable and possible reserves may be disclosedlagely on a voluntary bas

* Proved Undeveloped Reserve Guidel—Reserves may be classified as proved undevelophdri# is a high degree of confider
that the quantities will be recovere

* Reserve Estimation Using New Technologies—Resenasbe estimated through the use of reliable tdolggdn addition to flow
tests and production histol

» Reserve Personnel and Estimation Process—Additdisalosure is required regarding the qualificagiofithe chief technical
person who oversees our reserves estimation progéswill also be required to provide a generatdssion of our internal contre
used to assure the objectivity of the reservemesé.

» Disclosure by Geographic Area—Reserves in foremmeries or continents must be presented sepai&tblyy represent more
than 15% of our total oil and natural gas provestrees

* Non-Traditional Resources—The definition of oil andural gas producing activities will expand and fecun the marketable
product rather than the method of extract

ASU 2010-03 is effective for entities with annueporting periods ending on or after December 3092We adopted both the FASB and
the SEC rules as of December 31, 2009 with no nahierpact on our consolidated financial statements

Contractual Obligations
Our office lease in Dallas, Texas comprises outreatual obligations.

Payments due by Perioc

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $1,280,00! $ 228,00( $477,00( $510,00( $ 65,00(
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Results of Operations

Normally, our period-to-period changes in net eageiand cash flows from operating activities areqpally determined by changes in
oil and natural gas sales volumes and prices,@addsser extent, by capital expenditures deduatdér the Net Profits Interests calculation.
Our portion of oil and natural gas sales volumeas\aaighted average sales prices are shown in tleeving table.

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Accrual Basis Sales Volume
Royalty Properties Gas Sales (mnr 4,457 4,00% 3,62
Royalty Properties Oil Sales (mbb 294 301 30C
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales (mn 3,59: 3,871 4,13:
Net Profits Interests Qil Sales (mbb 11 12 16
Accrual Basis Weighted Averages Sales Pi
Royalty Properties Gas Sales ($/ir $371 $82t $6.64
Royalty Properties Oil Sales ($/bl $57.3t  $96.0: $67.7¢
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales ($/n $391 $85¢ $6.65
Net Profits Interests Oil Sales ($/b $51.82  $98.7¢  $62.4(
Accrual Basis Production Costs Deducted under the
Net Profits Interests ($/mcfe® $15C $18 $1.9¢

(1) Provided to assist in determination of revenuepliep only to Net Profits Interests sales volumesgs.

Comparison of the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Royalty Properties’ oil sales volumes were virtyalhchanged during 2008 compared to 2007. Royatltpétties’ oil sales volumes
decreased 2.3% from 301 mbbls during 2008 to 29dlsrduring 2009 because of natural declines. Rpybperties’ gas sales volumes
increased 10.5% from 3,623 mmcf during 2007 to 3 @dncf during 2008 and then increased 11.3% to7mimcf during 2009. The increase
in natural gas volumes in 2008 was attributablee drilling activity on the Royalty Properties.2009, natural gas volumes increased
primarily due to the acquisition of royalty and oging royalty interests in the Barnett Shale Tden

Net Profits Interests properties’ oil sales volurdesreased 25% from 16 mbbls during 2007 to 12 sathlating 2008, primarily due to an
operator’'s adjustments to production from prioriges and subsequently decreased to 11 mbbls d2€i6g. Net Profits Interests properties’
gas sales volumes decreased 6.2% from 4,133 mmiaigd2007 to 3,877 mmcf during 2008 and subsequeldtreased 7.3% to 3,593 mmc
2009 principally as a result of natural reservaiplétion in the Guymon-Hugoton field in Oklahoma.

Weighted average oil sales prices attributablééoRoyalty Properties increased 41.7% from $67ef5pl in 2007 to $96.02 per bbl in
2008 and subsequently decreased 40.3% to $57.3%pier 2009. Royalty Properties’ weighted averggs sales prices increased 24.2% from
$6.64 per mcf during 2007 to $8.25 per mcf durio@and then decreased 55.0% to $3.71 per mcfgl@afif9. All such fluctuations resulted
from changing market conditions.

Weighted average Net Profits Interests propertias’sales prices increased 29.4% from $6.63 pedunifg 2007 to $8.58 per mcf
during 2008 and then decreased 54.4% to $3.91 peinr2009. Net Profits Interests properties’ weeghaverage oil sales prices increased
58.3% from $62.40 per bbl during 2007 to $98.76hi@rduring 2008 followed by a decrease of 47.5%5b.83 per bbl in 2009. All such
fluctuations resulted from changing market condsioAdditionally, 2008 natural gas prices includeatural gas liquids payment accrual of
$0.59/mcf related to 2008 production. Similarly,aatditional amount of approximately $1.8 milliorr 009 production is anticipated to be
received during the first quarter of 2010. The aedr2010 natural gas liquids payment of $0.51/mafc¢luded in the $3.91/mcf average gas
sales price for 2009. The
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natural gas liquids payments are based on an Oklat@uymon-Hugoton field 1994 gas delivery agreertigattis in effect through 2015.
Under the terms of the agreement, when the mariegt pf natural gas liquids increases sufficiewigproportionately to natural gas market
prices, the operating partnership receives a podfdhat increase in an annual payment. In thatee evaluation at the end of the annual
contract period shows the payment to be determénaidl collectable, the revenue is accrued. Onlydtarial amounts were received prior to
2007.

Our operating revenues decreased 51.5% from $8®0@%luring 2008 to $43,631,000 in 2009 primarsyaaesult of decreased oil and
natural gas prices. Our operating revenues incoe3s&% from $65,365,000 during 2007 to $89,925@@@ng 2008 primarily as a result of
increased oil and natural gas prices during thé820@nmer months along with a 2007 natural gasd&payment received during the first half
of 2008 and an accrued natural gas liquid paynmesgived during the first quarter of 2009.

General and administrative (“G&A”) costs decrea6e2% from $3,965,000 in 2008 to $3,715,000 in 2008 to reduced capital
expenditures reimbursed. G&A costs increased 10rdf $3,591,000 in 2007 to $3,965,000 in 2008 duimtreased costs related to, among
other things, increased number of unitholder actorequiring K-1's and ongoing modernizing of laieg¢ords begun in mid-2007.

Depletion and amortization decreased 5.3% from38A000 in 2007 to $14,739,000 in 2008 primarilyaassult of a lower depletable
base due to the effects of previous depletion govcbund revisions in oil and natural gas reserveresgtis. During 2009, depletion and
amortization increased 5.8% to $15,599,000, prilyas a result of the acquisition of new propertigmg with low natural gas pricing
impacting depletable reserves. Cash flow from dpmra and cash distributions to unitholders areatfgicted by depletion, depreciation and
amortization. Changes in reserve calculations didntrease depletion materially.

Net cash provided by operating activities increade@% from $58,432,000 during 2007 to $82,908,@®dng 2008 due primarily to
increased oil and natural gas prices during therseeand third quarters along with abnormal gaddigrnayments. See discussion of operating
revenues above for more details. Net cash provigenberating activities decreased 54.9% to $37@E®bduring 2009 primarily due to
decreased oil and natural gas prices.

Climate Change

Climate change has become the subject of an impquteblic policy debate. Climate change legislatonl regulations have been adoj
by many foreign countries and some states in thitedistates; however, legislation and regulaticeaeenot been enacted at the federal level,
although the United States Congress and severa states have or are considering adopting clintzdege legislation. The current state of
development of many state and federal climate chaagulatory initiatives makes it difficult to pietwith certainty the future impact on us,
including accurately estimating the related commecosts that the operating partnership and dilnatural gas operators that develop our
properties may incur.

See Item 1A. Risk Factors — “Environmental cost} la@bilities and changing environmental regulatémuld affect our cash flow” and
“The adoption of climate change legislation by Cesgrcould result in increased operating costs etiuced demand for the oil and natural
production from our properties.”

Texas Margin Tax

Texas imposes a margin tax at a rate of 1% on ges&ues less certain deductions, as specifisatijorth in the Texas margin tax
statute. The Texas margin tax applies to corpanatamd limited liability companies, general anditéd partnerships (unless otherwise
exempt), limited liability partnerships, trusts [ggs otherwise exempt), business trusts, busirsssgiations, professional associations, joint
stock companies, holding companies, joint ventarescertain other business entities having limliggaility protection.
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Limited partnerships that receive at least 90%hefrtgross income from designated passive souirgsading royalties from mineral
properties and other non-operated mineral inténesime, and do not receive more than 10% of timeioine from operating an active trade or
business, are generally exempt from the Texas m&agias “passive entities.” We believe our Paghigr meets the requirements for being
considered a “passive entity” for Texas margingaxposes and, therefore, it is exempt from the Fewargin tax. If exempt from tax at the
Partnership level as a passive entity, each umithidhat is considered a taxable entity under #a$ margin tax would generally be required
to include its portion of Partnership revenuedsroiwn Texas margin tax computation. The Texas Adstrative Code provides such income is
sourced according to the principal place of busirdghe Partnership, which would be the stateefab.

Each unitholder is urged to consult his own taxisahwregarding the requirements for filing stateome, franchise and Texas margin tax
returns.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Capital Resources

Our primary sources of capital are our cash floanfithe Net Profits Interests and the Royalty PriogerWe are not directly liable for t
payment of any exploration, development or produrctosts. We do not have any transactions, arraagesnor other relationships that could
materially affect our liquidity or the sustainabjlof capital resources.

Pursuant to the terms of our partnership agreementannot incur indebtedness, other than tradelpes, (i) in excess of $50,000 in the
aggregate at any given time or (ii) which would stitnte “acquisition indebtedness” (as defined éct®n 514 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended).

Our only cash requirements are the distributionalladur net cash flow to our unitholders, the paytof oil and natural gas production
and property taxes not otherwise deducted fromsgoosduction revenues and general and administratipenses incurred on our behalf and
allocated in accordance with our partnership agesgnsince the distributions to our unitholders asedefinition, determined after the
payment of all expenses actually paid by us, the cash requirements that may create liquidity @wns for us are the payments of expenses.
Since many of these expenses vary directly witlaod natural gas prices and sales volumes, sugtodaction taxes, we anticipate that
sufficient funds will be available at all times foayment of these expenses. Of the expenses thmaitd@ry with oil and natural gas prices and
sales volumes, most are reimbursements to our glgoentner for allocable general and administratiosts including home office rent, salar
and employee benefit plans. Such reimbursementgearerally limited to 5% of an amount primarily bdn annual distributions to our
limited partners. Historically, all such reimbursamts have been substantially below the 5% limaldighed by the partnership agreement.
Consequently, even during the 2008 economic downtur business risks were essentially limitedistrithution amount decreases. See “ltem
1. Business — Credit Facilities and Financing PlaBse “Iltem 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Business — Cash distributions are
affected by production and other costs, some oflwhre outside of our control.” See “Iltem 1A. Rigctors -Risks Inherent In An Investme
In Our Common Units — Cost reimbursement due oneg# partner may be substantial and reduce ol aaslable to distribute to our
unitholders.” See “Notes to Consolidated FinanSkaltements — Note 3 — Related Party Transactions.”

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangesrtbiat have or are reasonably likely to have sectiror future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity itedexpenditures or capital resources that are
material to unitholders.
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Expenses and Capital Expenditures

The operating partnership plans to continue itsreffto increase production in Oklahoma by techesciinat may include fracture treati
deepening, recompleting, and drilling. Costs vaigely and are not predictable as each effort reguipecific engineering. Such activities by
the operating partnership could influence the amaenreceive from the Net Profits Interests asexéd in the accrual basis production costs
$/mcfe in the table under “Results of Operations.”

The operating partnership owns and operates this,vpgbelines and natural gas compression and daatigd facilities located in Kansas
and Oklahoma. The operating partnership anticipgitadual increases in expenses as repairs to theates become more frequent and
anticipates gradual increases in field operatingeases as reservoir pressure declines. The oggpaimership does not anticipate incurring
significant expense to replace these facilitiethigttime. These capital and operating costs dtected in the Net Profits Interests payments we
receive from the operating partnership.

In 1998, Oklahoma regulations removed producticangjty restrictions in the Guymon-Hugoton field atid not address efforts by third
parties to persuade Oklahoma to permit infill drdlin the Guymon-Hugoton field. Infill drilling add require considerable capital
expenditures. The outcome and the cost of suchitiesi are unpredictable and could influence the@am we receive from the Net Profits
Interests. The operating partnership believes\t has sufficient field compression and permitsviacuum operation for the foreseeable future.

Liquidity and Working Capital
Year-end cash and cash equivalents totaled $1@024or 2009, $16,211,000 for 2008, and $15,001f60Q007.

Distributions

Distributions to limited partners and the generatiper related to cash receipts for the period f@ctober 2008 through December 2009
were as follows:

$ in Thousands

Per Unit Limited General
Year Quarter Record Date Payment Date Amount Partners Partner
2008 4th  January 26, 200 February 5, 200 $ 0.54208: $ 15,30¢ $ 52
2009 1si April 27, 2009 May 7, 200¢€ 0.40120! 11,33( 31c
2009 2nc  July 24, 200¢ August 3, 200¢ 0.27135: 8,091 28¢
2009 3rd  October 26, 200 November 5, 200 0.28696! 8,56: 307
Total distributions paid in 20C $ 43,29¢ $ 1,42¢
2009 4th  January 25, 201 February 4, 201 $ 0.32154i $ 9,59 $ 33¢

In general, the limited partners are allocated @%e Royalty Properties’ net receipts and 99%wfNet Profits Interests net receipts.

Net Profits Interests

We receive monthly payments from the operatingrgaship equal to 96.97% of the net proceeds agtuedllized by the operating
partnership from the properties underlying the Rieffits Interests. The operating partnership rst#ie 3.03% balance of these net proceeds.
Net proceeds generally reflect gross proceeddatable to oil and natural gas production actuadbeived during the month less product
costs actually paid during the same month. Prodoaiosts generally reflect drilling, completioneogting and general and administrative ¢
and exclude depletion, amortization and other reshecosts. The operating partnership
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made Net Profits Interests payments to us totalit®)003,000 during October 2008 through Septem®@®,2vhich payments reflected 96.9
of total net proceeds of $12,378,000 realized fReptember 2008 through August 2009. Net proceedized by the operating partnership
during September through November 2009 were refteirt Net Profits Interests payments made duringlisr through December 2009. Th
payments were included in the fourth quarter distion paid in early 2010 and are excluded frorm #0109 analysis.

Royalty Properties

Revenues from the Royalty Properties are typiqadligl to us with proportionate severance (produgtiaxes deducted and remitted by
others. Additionally, we generally pay ad valoremes, general and administrative costs, and mackatid associated costs since royalties
lease bonuses generally do not otherwise bear e similar costs. After deduction of the abaescribed costs including cash reserves,
our net cash receipts from the Royalty Propertigthd the period October 2008 through Septembe® 20€re $32,725,000, of which
$31,416,000 (96%) was distributed to the limitedners and $1,309,000 (4%) was distributed to #reegal partner. Proceeds received by us
from the Royalty Properties during the period Oetdiirough December 2009 became part of the fajur#nter distribution paid in early 2010,
which is excluded from this 2009 analysis.

Distribution Determinations

The actual calculation of distributions is perfodveach calendar quarter in accordance with ouneestip agreement. The following
calculation covering the period October 2008 thioBgptember 2009 demonstrates the method.

$ In Thousands

General
Limited
Partners Partner
4% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Proper $ — $1,30¢
96% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Propel 31,41¢ —
1% of Net Profits Interests Paid to our Partner: 12C
99% of Net Profits Interests Paid to our Partngr 11,88 —
Total Distributions $43,29¢ $1,42¢
Operating Partnership Share (3.03% of Net Proce — 37&
Total General Partner She $1,80¢
% of Total 96% 4%

In summary, our limited partners received 96%, amdgeneral partner received 4% of the net caskrgésd by our activities and those
of the operating partnership during this periodeDathese fixed percentages, our general partoes dot have any incentive distribution rig
or other right or arrangement that will increasepiércentage share of net cash generated by dwitiestor those of the operating partnership.

During the period October 2008 through Septemb8020ur Partnership’s quarterly distribution paytseo limited partners were based
on all of its available cash. Our Partnership’sy@ignificant cash reserves that influenced quigrfgayments were $1,137,000 for ad valorem
taxes. Additionally, certain production costs unther Net Profits Interests calculation and a sipaition of management expense
reimbursements include amounts for which funds geteaside monthly to enable payment when due. pbeanare contributions to SEP-IRA
accounts and payroll taxes. These amounts genaralgot held for periods over one year.

Fourth Quarter 2009 Distribution Indicated Price

In an effort to provide information concerning @récof oil and natural gas sales that correspoodtauarterly distributions, managem
calculates the weighted average price by dividirasg revenues received
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by the net volumes of the corresponding produdhaetit regard to the timing of the production to whitich sales may be attributable. This
“indicated price” does not necessarily reflect thatractual terms for such sales and may be affdntaransportation costs, location
differentials, and quality and gravity adjustmem#hile the relationship between the Partnershgaish receipts and the timing of the produr
of oil and natural gas may be described generatifyal cash receipts may be materially impactepurghaserstelease of suspended funds
by prior period adjustments.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnership’saRgyroperties during the 2009 fourth quarterlestapproximately $8.8 million. These
receipts generally reflect oil sales during Septentbrough November 2009 and natural gas saleagldigust through October 2009. The
weighted average indicated prices for oil and radtgas sales during the 2009 fourth quarter atizitle to the Royalty Properties were
$69.57/bbl and $3.17/mcf.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnershiypét Profits Interests during the 2009 fourth tpraiotaled approximately $1.9 million. Th
receipts generally reflect oil and natural gassséiem the properties underlying the Net Profiteetasts during August through October 2009.
The weighted average indicated prices for oil aairal gas sales during the 2009 fourth quartebattble to the Net Profits Interests were
$62.55/bbl and $3.31/mcf.

General and Administrative Costs

In accordance with our partnership agreement, vae &iégeneral and administrative and other ovetlegenses subject to certain
limitations. We reimburse our general partner fentain allocable costs, including rent, wages,rs&sdaand employee benefit plans. This
reimbursement is limited to an amount equal tostiva of 5% of our distributions plus certain cosevipusly paid. Through December 31,
20009, the limitation was in excess of the reimbomset amounts actually paid or accrued.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The following information provides quantitative aqdalitative information about our potential exp@suto market risk. The term
“market risk” refers to the risk of loss arisingiin adverse changes in oil and natural gas prinesgist rates and currency exchange rates. The
disclosures are not meant to be precise indicatioegpected future losses, but rather indicatongoskible losses.

Market Risk Related to Oil and Natural Gas Prices

Essentially all of our assets and sources of incaradrom the Net Profits Interests and the RoyRhyperties, which generally entitle us
to receive a share of the proceeds from oil andrabgjas production on those properties. Consetyjemt are subject to market risk from
fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices. Priciagoil and natural gas production has been Jelatind unpredictable for several years. We do
not anticipate entering into financial hedging atigs intended to reduce our exposure to oil aattiral gas price fluctuations.

Absence of Interest Rate and Currency Exchange Riake

We do not anticipate having a credit facility ocumring any debt, other than trade debt. Therefoeedo not expect interest rate risk tc
material to us. We do not anticipate engagingangactions in foreign currencies which could expgsto foreign currency related market ri

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The consolidated financial statements are set fegthin commencing on page F-1.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Cleigécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, fesluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduledRl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchangea&adf December 31, 2009. Based on
this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer andi&Hrinancial Officer have concluded that, as ot&maber 31, 2009, our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective, in that they enthakinformation required to be disclosed by uthmreports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summasrddeported within the time periods specifiethe SEC's rules and forms, and
(2) accumulated and communicated to our managenmehiding our Chief Executive Officer and ChiehBncial Officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management acknowledges its responsibility fortdisthing and maintaining adequate internal cordkar financial reporting in
accordance with Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated underkchange Act. Management has also evaluatedféaieeness of its internal control
over external financial reporting in accordancehvgienerally accepted accounting principles with duidelines of the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisamework. Based on the results of this evaluatimanagement has determined tha
Partnership’s internal control over financial refpay was effective as of December 31, 2009. Thepethident registered public accounting firm
of Grant Thornton LLP, as auditors of the Partnig@stfinancial statements included in the AnnuapBe, has issued an attestation report on
the Partnership’s internal control over financegporting.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our Partnership’s intexmatrol over financial reporting (as defined inl®Rui3a-15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) during the quarter ended bz 31, 2009, that have materially affected, erraasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2010 Proxy Statemdmth will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl28ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2009.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2010 Proxy Statemadnith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2009.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
UNITHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorp@eterein by reference to the 2010 Proxy Statemdmith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2009.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2010 Proxy Statemadnith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl28ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2009.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@@terein by reference to the 2010 Proxy Statemdmth will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2009.
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ITEM 15.

Number

3.1

3.2

3.1C

3.11

3.12

3.1¢

PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements and Schedules

(1)
(2)
3)

See the Index to Consolidated Financial Statenmntsage -1.
No schedules are require
Exhibits.

Description
Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exi8hitto Dorcheste

Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartiecftDorchester Minerals, L.P. (incorporated bference to Exhibit
3.2 to Dorchester Minere Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Management LP (incorporated by referenéextobit 3.4 to
Dorchester Minera’ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartieftDorchester Minerals Management LP (incorpedédty referenc
to Exhibit 3.4 to Dorchester Miner’ Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Formation of Dorchester Minerals Mgement GP LLC (incorporated by reference to ExI8ii to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agnent of Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLCofiporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Dorchester Mine’ Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Formation of Dorchester Minerals @gig GP LLC (incorporated by reference to Exh®0 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Limited Liability Company Agreement of Dorchesteindrals Operating GP LLC (incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.11 t
Dorchester Minera’ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Operating LP (incorporated by referencexuiltit 3.12 to
Dorchester Minera’ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartiedtDorchester Minerals Operating LP (incorpodaly reference t
Exhibit 3.10 to Dorchester Mineri’ Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Oklahoma LP (incorporated by reference tuitk3.11 to
Dorchester Minera’ Annual Report on Form K for the year ended December 31, 20

Agreement of Limited Partnership of Dorchester Mate Oklahoma LP (incorporated by reference to EixI3.12 to
Dorchester Minera’ Annual Report on Form K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Incorporation of Dorchester Miner@lklahoma GP, Inc. (incorporated by reference thiliik3.13 to Dorchest:
Mineral¢ Annual Report on Form -K for the yealended December 31, 20(C
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Number

3.1<

10.1

10.z

10.:

10.¢

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.1(

21.1*
23.1*
23.2*
23.3*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*
99.1*
99.2*

Description
Bylaws of Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, Inccdiporated by reference to Exhibit 3.14 to Dorcaebtinerals’ Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

Amended and Restated Business Opportunities Agnetetia¢ed as of December 13, 2001 by and betweeRdhestrant, th:
General Partner, Dorchester Minerals ManagementlGR SAM Partners, Ltd., Vaughn Petroleum, Ltd.,i8rAllen Oil &
Gas, Inc., P.A. Peak, Inc., James E. Raley, Imd c&rtain other parties (incorporated by referéndexhibit 10.1 to Dorchest
Mineral¢ Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Transfer Restriction Agreement (incorporated bgmefice to Exhibit 10.2 to Dorchester Minerals’ AahReport on Form 18-
for the year ended December 31, 20

Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated byneriee to Exhibit 10.3 to Dorchester Mine’ Annual Report on Form -K
for the year ended December 31, 20

Lock-Up Agreement by William Casey McManemin (ingorated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dorchebtererals’ Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated by refieeeto Exhibit 10.1 to Dorchester Minerals’ Qudyté&teport on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2C

Contribution and Exchange Agreement by and amongtizster Minerals, L.P., Tiggator, Inc., TRB Mirlstd_P and Wes
Fork Partners dated May 15, 2009 (incorporatecelisrence to Exhibit 10.1 to Dorchester Mineralsti@nt Report on Form 8-
K dated June 30, 200

Amendment No. 1 dated June 26, 2009 to Contribwdiwh Exchange Agreement by and among Dorchestesrils) L.P.
Tiggator, Inc., TRB Minerals, LP and West Fork Rars dated May 15, 2009 (incorporated by referémé&exhibit 10.2 to
Dorchester Minera’ Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2C

Lock-up Agreement by Tiggator, Inc. dated June 30, Z00®rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dester Mineral
Current Report on Formr-K dated June 30, 200

Lock-up Agreement by TRB Minerals, LP dated Jung2B@9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@.Dbrchester
Mineral¢ Current Report on Forr-K dated June 30, 200

Lock-up Agreement by West Fork Partners, LP datex B0, 2009 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi2 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Current Report on Forir-K dated June 30, 200

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Grant Thornton LL

Consent of Calhoun, Blair & Associat

Consent of Huddleston & Co., In

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1¢
Certification of Chief Financial Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1

Report of Calhoun, Blair & Associat

Report of Huddleston & Co., In

* Filed herewitr
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GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN OIL AND NATURAL GAS TERMS

The definitions set forth below shall apply to thdicated terms as used in this document. All vadaraf natural gas referred to herein
stated at the legal pressure base of the stateamdnere the reserves exist and at 60 degreesrifadir and in most instances are rounded t
nearest major multiple.

“bbl” means a standard barrel of 42 U.S. gallons anésepts the basic unit for measuring the produdfamude oil, natural gas liqui
and condensate.

“bcf” means one billion cubic feet under prescribed d@s of pressure and temperature and represemts for measuring the
production of natural gas.

“Depletion” means (a) the volume of hydrocarbons extracted &idormation over a given period of time, (b) theerof hydrocarbon
extraction over a given period of time expressed psrcentage of the reserves existing at the bagjrof such period, or (c) the amount of «
basis at the beginning of a period attributablthéovolume of hydrocarbons extracted during suctogde

“Division order” means a document to protect lessees and purctdgasduction, in which all parties who may havelam to the
proceeds of the sale of production agree upon hewptoceeds are to be divided.

“Enhanced recovery’means the process or combination of processesedpplia formation to extract hydrocarbons in addito those
that would be produced utilizing the natural eneggisting in that formation. Examples of enhanaswbrery include water flooding and carl
dioxide (CO2) injection.

“Estimated future net revenuegalso referred to as “estimated future net cash”jlaneans the result of applying current prices ofai
natural gas to estimated future production fronaaill natural gas proved reserves, reduced by dstifizture expenditures, based on current
costs to be incurred in developing and producimgpttoved reserves, excluding overhead.

“Formation” means a distinct geologic interval, sometimes retkto as the strata, which has characteristiash(as permeability,
porosity and hydrocarbon saturations) that dististgit from surrounding intervals.

“Gross acre” means the number of surface acres in which a wgrkiterest is owned.

“Gross well” means a well in which a working interest is owned.

“Lease bonus”means the initial cash payment made to a lessarlegsee in consideration for the execution andeyance of the lease.
“Leasehold” means an acre in which a working interest is owned.

“Lessee” means the owner of a lease of a mineral interesttiact of land.

“Lessor” means the owner of the mineral interest who graméase of his interest in a tract of land to edtparty, referred to as the
lessee.

“Mineral interest” means the interest in the minerals beneath thasidf a tract of land. A mineral interest may &eesed from the
ownership of the surface of the tract. Ownership ofineral interest generally involves four incitteof ownership: (1) the right to use the
surface; (2) the right to incur costs and retafifs, also called the right to develop; (3) thghtito transfer all or a portion of the mineral
interest; and (4) the right to retain lease besgiitcluding bonuses and delay rentals.
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“mcf” means one thousand cubic feet under prescribedtim sdof pressure and temperature and repredeatsasic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.

“mbbls” means one thousand standard barrels of 42 U.®ngalind represents the basic unit for measuringrthgtuction of crude ail,
natural gas liquids and condensate.

“mmcf’ means one million cubic feet under prescribed dmr i of pressure and temperature and representsagic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.

“Net acre” means the product determined by multiplying grasssby the interest in such acres.
“Net well” means the product determined by multiplying grabaral natural gas wells by the interest in suckisve

“Net profits interest”’means a non-operating interest that creates a shgress production from another (operating or-operating)
interest in oil and natural gas properties. Theekadetermined by net profits from the sale aidurction and customarily provides for the
deduction of capital and operating costs from ttee@eds of the sale of production. The owner odtgonofits interest is customarily liable for
the payment of capital and operating costs ontj¢oextent that revenue is sufficient to pay sum$tcbut not otherwise.

“Operator” means the individual or company responsible foretk@oration, development, and production of arooihatural gas well or
lease.

“Overriding royalty interest”’means a royalty interest created or reserved froothar (operating or non-operating) interest inaidl
natural gas properties. Its term extends for timeesterm as the interest from which it is created.

“Payout” or “Back-in” occurs when the working interest owners who paudite in the costs of drilling and completing a wetioup the
costs and expenses, or a multiple of the costeapenses, of drilling and completing that well. Ytlen are the owners who chose not to
contribute to these initial costs entitled to papiate with the other owners in production and shiatthe expenses and revenues associated witl
the well. The reversionary interest or back-in iegt of an owner similarly occurs when the ownerooees entitled to a specified share of the
working or overriding royalty interest when speeificosts have been recovered from production.

“Proved developed reservesiieans reserves that can be expected to be recqietiembugh existing wells with existing equipmentd
operating methods or in which the cost of the nesgiequipment is relatively minor compared to tbstof a new well; and (ii) through
installed extraction equipment and infrastructyserational at the time of the reserves estimateeifextraction is by means not involving a
well.

“Proved reserves’or “Proved oil and natural gas reserveshieans those quantities of oil and natural gas, lwhig analysis of
geoscience and engineering data, can be estimétedeasonable certainty to be economically prodiesi-from a given date forward, from
known reservoirs, and under existing economic dwwr, operating methods, and governmental reguiati-prior to the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expirdess evidence indicates that renewal is reasorwatgin, regardless of whether deterministic
or probabilistic methods are used for the estinmafithe project to extract the hydrocarbons musel@mmmenced or the operator must be
reasonably certain that it will commence the proyeithin a reasonable time.

“Proved undeveloped reservegieans proved reserves that are expected to beemebfrom new wells on undrilled acreage, or from
existing wells where a relatively major expenditigreequired for recompletion.
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“Royalty” means an interest in an oil and natural gas léegeayives the owner of the interest the right tteree a portion of the
production from the leased acreage (or of the mds®f the sale thereof) but generally does natireghe owner to pay any portion of the
costs of drilling or operating the wells on theded acreage.

“Severance tax’means an amount of tax, surcharge or levy recougraegbvernmental agencies from the gross procekedis and nature
gas sales. Production tax may be determined ascargage of proceeds or as a specific amount gamedric unit of sales. Severance tax is
usually withheld from the gross proceeds of oil aatlral gas sales by the first purchaser (e.pelipie or refinery) of production.

“Standardized measure of discounted future net dksis” (also referred to as “standardized measumegans the pretax present valut
estimated future net revenues to be generatedtfterproduction of proved reserves calculated imatance with SEC guidelines, net of
estimated production and future development casiag prices and costs as of the date of estimatitirout future escalation, without giving
effect to non-property related expenses such asrgeand administrative expenses, debt servicalapceciation, depletion and amortization,
and discounted using an annual discount rate of 10%

“Test Rate”means a daily volume of oil, gas or condensatehitiwa well produced to a pipeline or tank battgithin that well's first
month of production based on information obtaineadnf public sources or from the operator.

“Undeveloped acreagefneans lease acreage on which wells have not béded dr completed to a point that would permit the
production of commercial quantities of oil and matwas regardless of whether such acreage comgeined reserves.

“Unitization” means the process of combining mineral interesksasies thereof in separate tracts of land infogesentity for
administrative, operating or ownership purposestizition is sometimes called “pooling” or “commtination” and may be voluntary or
involuntary.

“Working interest” (also referred to as an “operating interest”) meansal property interest entitling the owner toeige a specified
percentage of the proceeds of the sale of oil ataral gas production or a percentage of the ptaztubut requiring the owner of the working
interest to bear the cost to explore for, develug produce such oil and natural gas. A workingregeowner who owns a portion of the
working interest may participate either as operatdvy voting his percentage interest to approvéisaipprove the appointment of an operator
and certain activities in connection with the depahent and operation of a property.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

Date: February 25, 2010

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P

By: Dorchester Minerals Management |
its general partne

By: Dorchester Minerals Management GP LI
its general partne

By: /s/ William Casey McManemi
William Casey McManemil
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesEaathange Act of 1934, this report has been sigmdalibby the following persons on

behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

/s/ William Casey McManemi

William Casey McManemin

Chief Executive Officer and Manager
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 25, 201

/s/ James E. Rale

James E. Raley
Chief Operating Officer and Manager
Date: February 25, 201

/s/ Preston A. Peak

Preston A. Pea
Manager
Date: February 25, 20

/s/ Ronald P. TroL

Ronald P. Trout
Manager
Date: February 25, 201
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/s/ H.C. Allen, Jr

H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Financial Officer and Manager
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Date: February 25, 201

/s/ Buford P. Bern
Buford P. Berry
Manager

Date: February 25, 201

/sl C. W. Russell

C. W. Russel

Manager

Date: February 25, 201

/sl Robert C. Vaugh
Robert C. Vaughn
Manager

Date: February 25, 201




Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, &00200¢
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and Z
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Partnerspital for the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2082007
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

F-1

F-4
F-5

F-7
F-8



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General Partner and Unitholders
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited Dorchester Minerals, L.P.’s (a data Limited Partnership) and subsidiaries’ (cdliedy, the “Partnership”) internal
control over financial reporting as of December 3109, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd®@ommission (COSO). The Partnership’s manageiseasponsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportingd for its assessment of the effectiveness efrat control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Annual Reporinterhal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgbility is to express an opinion on
the Partnership’s internal control over financigpaorting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedadof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifanternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstanceddlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagi€ithin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Partnership maintained, imaditerial respects, effective internal control dfueancial reporting as of December 31,
2009, based on criteria establishednirernal Control—Integrated Framewoitsued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Partnership@saember 31, 2009 and 2008 and the related colasetl statements of operations, cash
flows, and changes in partnership capital for e#che three years in the period ended Decembe2(19, and our report dated February 25,
2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on thoseéiz statements.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 25, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General Partner and Unitholders
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (a Delawaréted Partnership) and
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Partnership”) dDecember 31, 2009 and 2008, and the relatednstates of operations, cash flows, and
changes in partnership capital for each of theetlyesars in the period ended December 31, 2009 eTfireancial statements are the
responsibility of the Partnership’s management. @sponsibility is to express an opinion on théserfcial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamliqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principded and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of the
Partnership as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 henisults of its operations and its cash flowsefmh of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2009, in conformity with accountingpgiples generally accepted in the United State&mérica.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Partnership has changed itsveesstimates and related disclosure:
a result of adopting new oil & gas reserve estioratind disclosure requirements as of December(®B9.2

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Partnership’s internal control over financial refpay as of December 31, 2009, based on critergbéished ininternal Control— Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrtee Treadway Commission (COSO) and our repated February 25,
2010 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 25, 2010
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2009 and 2008
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade and other receivabl
Net profits interests receival—related party
Total current asse

Other nor-current asset

Property and leasehold improveme—at cost:
Qil and natural gas properties (full cost meth
Accumulated full cost depletic
Total

Leasehold improvemen
Accumulated amortizatio

Total
Net property and leasehold improveme
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERSHIP CAPITAL
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilil
Current portion of deferred rent incenti
Total current liabilities
Deferred rent incentive less current port
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Partnership capita
General partne
Unitholders
Total partnership capiti
Total liabilities and partnership capi

2009 2008
$ 10,12 $ 16,21
5,41¢ 5,055
3,70% 4,42¢
19,24¢ 25,69:
19 19
327,06 291,81
(193,82) (178,27)
133,24° 113,54¢
512 512
(256) (207)
25€ 30E
133,50: 113,85
$ 152,76t $ 139,56
$  52¢ $  73¢
39 39
56€ 772
16¢ 20€
737 98¢
5,24( 5,971
146,79 132,61
152,03 138,58:
$ 152,76t $ 139,56.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and ZQ@ollars in Thousands, except per unit amounts)

Operating revenue
Royalties
Net profits interest
Lease bonu
Other

Total operating revenu

Costs and expense
Production taxe
Operating expenst
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati
General and administrative expen

Total costs and expens
Operating incom
Other income, ne
Net earning:

Allocation of net earnings
General Partne

Unitholders
Net earnings per common unit (basic and dilu

Weighted average common units outstanding’s)

2009

2008

2007

$33,41:  $61,97¢  $44,39¢
9,44¢ 27,44 20,347
68¢ 441 57t

82 70 45
43,63 89,92¢ 65,36
1,20z 2,792 2,09t
2,16( 1,98( 1,77¢
15,59¢ 14,73¢ 15,56"
3,71¢ 3,96¢ 3,591
22,67¢ 23,47¢ 23,02¢
20,95¢ 66,44¢ 42,34(
72€ 334 70¢
$21,68.  $66,780  $43,04¢
$ 69 $199¢ $127¢
$20,98:  $64,78¢  $41,77:
$ 07z $ 23C $ 1.4¢
29,04/ 28,24( 28,24(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200

(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earning:

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cashiiged by operating activitie

Depreciation, depletion and amortizati
Write-off related to unsuccessful acquisiti
Amortization of deferred ret

Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade and other receivabl
Net profits interests receival—related party
Accounts payable and other current liabilit

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from note receiva—related party
Adjustment related to acquisition of natural gasperties
Capital expenditure

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

Cash flows from financing activitie
Distributions paid to partne

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Non-Cash investing and financing activiti
Value of units issued for natural gas propertiegiaed

2009 2008
$ 21,68 $ 66,78:
15,59¢ 14,73¢
— 62
(39) (40)
(36€) 2,00(
72F (852)
(204) 21€
37,39¢ 82,90¢
1,251 —
(6) (50
1,24¢ (50)
(44,729 (81,649
(6,087) 1,21
16,21 15,00:
$ 10,12+ $ 16,21
$ 36,49¢ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

N
(%)

(57,40)
1,07¢
13,92%

$ 15,00
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERSHIP C APITAL
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200
(Dollars in Thousands)

General

Unitholder

Year Partner Unitholders Total Units
2007

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 6,791 $161,00: $167,80( 28,240,43

Net earning: 1,274 41,772 43,04¢

Distributions ($1.973989 per Uni (1,659 (55,747 (57,40

Balance at December 31, 20 6,417 147,03( 153,44 28,240,43
2008

Net earning: 1,99¢ 64,78¢ 66,78

Distributions ($2.804603 per Un| (2,445 (79,209 (81,64

Balance at December 31, 20 5,971 132,61: 138,58: 28,240,43
2009

Net earning: 69¢ 20,98: 21,68

Acquisition of assets for uni — 36,49¢ 36,49¢ 1,600,001

Distributions ($1.501608 per Un| (1,429 (43,299 (44,72

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 5,24( $146,79: $152,03: 29,840,43

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Polies

Nature of Operations—In these Notes, the term “Partnership,” as wethasterms “us,” “our,” “we,” and “its” are sometén used as
abbreviated references to Dorchester Minerals, itsBIf or Dorchester Minerals, L.P. and its rethéatities. Our Partnership is a Dallas, Texas
based owner of producing and nonproducing natwslaamd crude oil royalty, net profits, and leasefiatierests in 574 counties and 25 states.
We are a publicly traded Delaware limited partngrshat was formed in December 2001, and commenpedations on January 31, 2003.

Basis of Presentation-Per-unit information is calculated by dividing tearnings or loss applicable to holders of our Rastnip’s
common units by the weighted average number ofunitstanding. The Partnership has no potentidlyive securities and, consequently,
basic and dilutive earnings per unit do not differ.

Principles of Consolidation—Fhe consolidated financial statements include ttomants of Dorchester Minerals, L.P., Dorchester
Minerals Oklahoma, LP, and Dorchester Minerals ®&taa GP, Inc. Dorchester Minerals Acquisition LI &orchester Minerals Acquisition
GP, Inc. were merged into Dorchester Minerals Odiah, LP and Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, lffiecéve December 31, 2009. All
significant intercompany balances and transacti@& been eliminated in consolidation.

Estimates—T he preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of
America requires management to make estimatesssuigotions that affect the reported amounts otsissel liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efctnsolidated financial statements and the repameounts of revenues and expenses durin
reporting period. For example, estimates of unctdlg revenues and unpaid expenses from royalt@seinprofits interests in properties
operated by non-affiliated entities are particylatbjective due to inability to gain accurate &éintely information. Therefore, actual results
could differ from those estimates. See “ltem 1.iBass—Customers and Pricing” and “ltem 2. “Progsrti-Royalty Properties” for additional
discussion.

The discounted present value of our proved oil@atdral gas reserves is a major component of tiiagealculation and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aeeéats based on engineering and geological anap#ésent reserve engineers may reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantitiegilodind natural gas reserves based on the sawrenafion. The passage of time provides n
gualitative information regarding reserve estimadéesl revisions are made to prior estimates basegdated information. However, there can
be no assurance that more significant revisionsneil be necessary in the future. Significant doardwevisions could result in an impairment
representing a non-cash charge to earnings. Iniaddd the impact on the calculation of the cejliest, estimates of proved reserves are also ¢
major component of the calculation of depletione 8e discussion und€roperty and Equipment

General Partner—Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Managei@, referred to in these Notes as “our geneainer.” Our
general partner owns all of the partnership intsresDorchester Minerals Operating LP, the opagpfiartnership. See Note-3Related Party
Transactions. The general partner is allocated 186486 of our Net Profits Interests revenues andaRgpyProperties revenues, respectively.
Our executive officers all own an interest in oengral partner and receive no compensation foicgenas officers of our Partnership.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsSur principal banking is with major financial instions. Cash balances in these accounts maynasti
exceed federally insured limits. We have not exgrered any losses in such cash accounts and delimidowe are exposed to any significant
risk on cash and cash equivalents. Short term
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

investments with a maturity of three months or Eegsconsidered to be cash equivalents and aiedatrcost, which approximates fair value.
Other income includes interest earned on short tlevestments of $14,000, $329,000, and $578,0@D@9, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risks-©ur Partnership, as a royalty owner, has no cootret the volumes or method of sale of oil and ratu
gas produced and sold from the Royalty Propeftiés believed that the loss of any single customeuld not have a material adverse effec
the consolidated results of our operations.

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsFhe carrying amount of cash and cash equivalenaide treceivables and payables approximates fai
value because of the short maturity of those insémts. These estimated fair values may not be septative of actual values of the financial
instruments that could have been realized as afged or that will be realized in the future.

Trade Receivables-Our Partnership’s trade receivables consist prisnafiRoyalty Properties payments receivable antdMNefits
Interests payments receivable. Most payments asved two to four months after production date.alowance for doubtful accounts is
deemed necessary.

Note Receivable—Related Partyodr Note Receivable consisted of a five-year netgaple by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP,
referred to in these Notes as “the operating pestij,” bearing interest at 6% having an origimaloaint of $250,836. Principal and interest
payments were received quarterly. The note wasipdidl at December 31, 2007.

Property and Equipment-We utilize the full cost method of accounting faists related to our oil and natural gas propertiesler this
method, all such costs are capitalized and amadrorean aggregate basis over the estimated livdegeqgiroperties using the unitsqofeductior
method. These capitalized costs are subject tdiagcgest, however, which limits such pooled castshe aggregate of the present value of
future net revenues attributable to proved oil aatliral gas reserves discounted at 10% plus therlofwcost or market value of unproved
properties. Our Partnership did not assign anyevedwnproved properties, including nonproducingafty, mineral and leasehold interests.
full cost ceiling is evaluated at the end of eaghrter and when events indicate possible impairment

While the quantities of proved reserves requirestritial judgment, the associated prices of oil metdral gas reserves that are included
in the discounted present value of our reserveslgjeztively determined. Beginning December 31,2@Be ceiling test calculation requires
use of the unweighted arithmetic average of tret flay of the month price during the 12-month mkeading on the balance sheet date
(previously year-end prices) and costs in effeaifabe last day of the accounting period, which generally held constant for the life of the
properties. As a result, the present value is roessarily an indication of the fair value of teeerves. Oil and natural gas prices have
historically been volatile, and the prevailing scat any given time may not reflect our Partnefshar the industry’s forecast of future prices.
Changes in determining the price to use in resepert calculations did not materially increase depletion expense. S&ew Accounting
Pronouncementbelow.

Our Partnership’s properties are being depletethemnit-of-production method using estimates olvpd oil and natural gas reserves.
Gains and losses are recognized upon the dispositioil and natural gas properties involving anffigant portion (greater than 25%) of our
Partnership’s reserves. Proceeds from other dispasiof oil and natural gas properties are crelditethe full cost pool. No gains or losses
have been recorded for 2009, 2008 or 2007.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Due to the nature of our interests, we have nocgary wells or associated costs pending detertinoimaand no exploratory well costs
were charged to expense.

Leasehold improvements include $415,000 receiva®@¥ as an incentive in our office space leasesanffset in liabilities as deferred
rent. Leasehold improvements are amortized oveshibeter of their estimated useful lives or thated lease life of 10 years. For leases with
renewal periods at the Partnership’s option, weehesed the original lease term, excluding reneywtbo periods to determine useful life.
Deferred rent incentive is being amortized to gahand administrative expense over the same tetitmedeasehold improvements, which is 10
years.

Asset Retirement ObligatiorsBased on the nature of our property ownershiphaxe no material obligation required to be recorded

Revenue Recognitiea-The pricing of oil and natural gas sales fromRugalty Properties is primarily determined by sypmhd demand
in the marketplace and can fluctuate consideraksya royalty owner, we have extremely limited inn@hent and operational control over the
volumes and method of sale of oil and natural gadyced and sold from the Royalty Properties.

Revenues from Royalty Properties and Net Profitsrésts are recorded under the cash receipts apppasadirectly received from the
remitters’ statement accompanying the revenue ct&ioke the revenue checks are generally receweda four months after the production
month, the Partnership accrues for revenue earieddb received by estimating production volumed product prices.

Income Taxes-We are treated as a partnership for income taxgs@pand, as a result, our income or loss is ifdkith the tax returns
of the individual unitholders. Unitholders shoulshsult tax advisors concerning their own tax sitratDepletion of oil and natural gas
properties is an expense allowable to each indaligartner, and the depletion expense as reporte¢kdeoconsolidated financial statements will
not be indicative of the depletion expense an iiddial partner or unitholder may be able to dedaciricome tax purposes.

Texas imposes a margin tax at a rate of 1% on ges&ues less certain deductions, as specifisatijorth in the Texas margin tax
statute. The Texas margin tax applies to corpanatamd limited liability companies, general anditéd partnerships (unless otherwise
exempt), limited liability partnerships, trusts [ess otherwise exempt), business trusts, busirssegiations, professional associations, joint
stock companies, holding companies, joint ventarescertain other business entities having limliggaility protection.

Limited partnerships that receive at least 90%hefrtgross income from designated passive souirngading royalties from mineral
properties and other non-operated mineral inténesime, and do not receive more than 10% of timeione from operating an active trade or
business, are generally exempt from the Texas m&agias “passive entities.” We believe our Paghigrmeets the requirements for being
considered a “passive entity” for Texas margingaxposes and, therefore, it is exempt from the Fewargin tax. If exempt from tax at the
Partnership level as a passive entity, each umitirahat is considered a taxable entity under &3 margin tax would generally be required
to include its portion of Partnership revenuedsroivn Texas margin tax computation. The Texas Adstrative Code provides such income is
sourced according to the principal place of busirdghe Partnership, which would be the stateeofab.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Each unitholder is urged to consult his own taxisahwregarding the requirements for filing stateome, franchise and Texas margin tax
returns.

New Accounting PronouncementsThe Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB&counting Standards Codification (“ASC”)
105-10-5, General Principles, Generally Acceptedodniting Principles defines the new hierarchy foB UGAAP and explains how the FASB
will use its Accounting Standards Codification s sole source for all authoritative guidance. FASEC 105-10-5 replaces SFAS 162, The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Prinemglwhich was issued in May 2008. It was effectoreall reporting periods ending after
September 15, 2009, and we have revised all refeseto pre-codification GAAP in our financial staents. It did not have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

FASB ASC 80510, Business Combinations, among other thingshksities principles and requirements for how theuaeqin a busine:
combination (a) recognizes and measures in itailmh statements the identifiable assets acquiredljabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interest in the acquired busineBychanges the accounting for contingent consiaerain process research and development,
and restructuring costs, c¢) expenses acquisititaterd costs as incurred, (d) recognizes and meatiuieegoodwill acquired in the business
combination or a gain from a bargain purchase,(ahdetermines what information to disclose to émalers of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of th&rm®ss combination. We adopted FASB ASC 805-1( darary 1, 2009 with no material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

FASB ASC 855-10, Subsequent Events, incorporatadtbounting and disclosure requirements for sulesgegvents into U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. FASB ASC 855-1fbthices new terminology, defines a date througtthivhianagement must evaluate
subsequent events, and lists the circumstances wiieh an entity must recognize and disclose eventransactions occurring after the
balance sheet date. We adopted FASB ASC 855-10Js1e 30, 2009, which was the required effectiaed

FASB Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2010-03vssued on January 6, 2010, and aligns the cusileand natural gas reserve
estimation and disclosure requirements of ASC 98R those in thesEC Final Rule Modernization of Oil and Gas Repaytssued
December 31, 2008. The rules only apply prospegtiae a change in estimate. The most significargradments to the reserve and disclosure
requirements include the following:

» Commodity Prices—Economic producibility of resereesl discounted cash flows will be based on an igived arithmetic
average of the first day of the month commoditg@uring the 12-month period ending on the balahest date unless
contractual arrangements designate the price tséd.

» Disclosure of Unproved Reser—Probable and possible reserves may be disclosedlately on a voluntary bas

* Proved Undeveloped Reserve Guidel—Reserves may be classified as proved undevelophdr# is a high degree of confider
that the quantities will be recovere

* Reserve Estimation Using New Technolo—Reserves may be estimated through the use of leeliathnology in addition to floy
tests and production histol

» Reserve Personnel and Estimation Process—Additdisalosure is required regarding the qualificagiofithe chief technical
person who oversees our reserves estimation progéswill also be required to provide a generatdssion of our internal contre
used to assure the objectivity of the reservemasé.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

» Disclosure by Geographic Area—Reserves in foremmtries or continents must be presented sepaitalyy represent more
than 15% of our total oil and natural gas provestrees

* Non-Traditional Resourc—The definition of oil and natural gas producingiaties will expand and focus on the marketa
product rather than the method of extract

ASU 2010-03 is effective for entities with annuaporting periods ending on or after December 3092We adopted both the FASB and
SEC rules described above as of December 31, 2@8%w material impact on our consolidated finahstatements. See “Note 6 Unaudited
Oil and Natural Gas Reserve and Standardized Medsformation” for more information.

Subsequent EvertsWe are not aware of any subsequent events, winichat already recognized or disclosed, that woedgiire
recognition or disclosure in the financial statetsen

2. Acquisitions

We have an effective registration statement on Fefinregistering 5,000,000 common units that magffered and issued by the
Partnership from time to time in connection witsetsacquisitions or other business combinatiorstrations. On June 30, 2009, we acquired
producing and non-producing Barnett Shale minerdlrayalty interests located in Tarrant County, 8&for 1,600,000 common units of
Dorchester Minerals, L.P. issued pursuant to tledf sbgistration statement. Net assets acquireldeatlate of acquisition totaled $36,496,000.
The balance sheets presented include $35,245,08@erty additions. After the issuance, 3,400,001 remain available under the shelf
registration statement.

3. Related Party Transactions

Our general partner owns all of the partnershigrggts in the operating partnership. It is the eygal of all personnel, owns the working
interests and other properties underlying our Nefif3 Interests, and provides day-to-day operati@md administrative services to us and the
general partner. In accordance with our partneragieement, we reimburse the general partner ftaineallocable general and administrative
costs, including rent, salaries, and employee ligplehs. These types of reimbursements are lintaeso of distributions, plus certain costs
previously paid. All such costs have been belowS¥elimit amount. Additionally, certain reimburseldirect costs such as professional and
regulatory fees and ad valorem and severance tareespt limited. Significant activity between thartnership and the operating partnership
consists of the following:

In Thousands

From/To Operating Partnership 2009 2008 2007

Net Profits Interests Payments Receivable or Aat® $3,702  $4,42¢  $3,57¢
Interest Income related to Net Profits Interestgniants $ 3 ¢ 1 §$ 1
General & Administrative Amounts Payal $ 34 $ 146 $ 52
General & Administrative Amounts Accru $ 33 ¢ 58 ¢ 31
Total General & Administrative Amoun $2,44¢ $2,69C  $2,36¢

@ All Net Profits Interests income on the financiltements is from the operating partners
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

4. Commitments and Contingencies

In January 2002, some individuals and an assonigdfied Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oiah regarding the use of natural gas from the virellesidences. The operating partnership
now owns and operates the properties formerly oviayeldorchester Hugoton. These properties contributeajor portion of the Net Profits
Interests amounts paid to us. On April 9, 2007inglés, for immaterial costs, dismissed with préice all claims against the operating
partnership regarding such residential gas useD@aber 4, 2004, the plaintiffs filed severed claiagainst the operating partnership regarding
royalty underpayments, which the Texas County Ris€ourt subsequently dismissed with a grantroktto replead. On January 27, 2006,
of the original plaintiffs again sued the operatpagtnership for underpayment of royalty, seekilag< action certification. On October 1, 2C
the Texas County District Court granted the opegagiartnership’s motion for summary judgment fimdito royalty underpayments.
Subsequently, the District Court denied the pl#istmotion for reconsideration, and the plainfifed an appeal. At present, the litigation
awaits result of the appeal to the Oklahoma Supi@met. An adverse appellate decision could redueunts we receive from the Net Pro
Interests.

Dorchester Minerals, L.P filed Cause No. 07-02508darchester Minerals, LP v. H&S Production, Intthe 15th District Court of
Grayson County, Texas in January, 2007. The suiivied claims under an oil and gas lease betwees lsssor and H&S as lessee. Our
Motion for Summary Judgment, which included damadgake amount of $496,000, was granted by théddart in May 2008. H&S appealed
the Judgment. The Fifth District Court of Appediiraed the Judgment on liability and remanded amdges. The subsequent Motion for
Rehearing filed by H&S was denied by the Fifth BittAppeals Court. The matter was settled on Oet@2, 2009 with the Appeals Court
ruling on liability continuing to stand, the disrs& with prejudice of the remanded action on darsaged receipt of a $500,000 payment from
H&S to us. The deposit was recorded in the fouthrter 2009 financial statements in other income.

Our Partnership and the operating partnershiprev@ved in other legal and/or administrative pratiegs arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesi@gmificant effect on consolidated
financial position, cash flows, or operating result

Operating Leases-We have entered into a non-cancelable, renewalpieeghiling rate for an additional five years, aparg lease
agreement in the ordinary course of our businetgities. The lease is for our office space at 38&& Lawn Avenue, Suite 300, Dallas, Te:
and expires in 2015. Rental expense related ttetse, including operating expenses and consumetfietectricity, was $217,000, $200,000,
and $199,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The base rent essalaOctober 2010. Minimum rental
commitments under the terms of our operating leases follows:

Minimum

Years Ended December 31, Payments

2010 $ 228,00(
2011 237,00(
2012 240,00(
2013 249,00(
2014 261,00(
Thereaftel 65,00(
Total $ 1,280,001
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5. Distribution To Holders Of Common Units
Unitholder cash distributions per common unit haeen:

Per Unit Amount

2009 2008 2007

First Quartel $0.40120! $0.57230! $0.461141
Second Quarte $0.27135. $0.76920! $0.47374!
Third Quartel $0.28696! $0.94847. $0.56050:
Fourth Quarte $0.32154i $0.54208. $0.51462!

Distributions beginning with the second quarte20®9 were paid on 29,840,431 units; previous distibns above were paid on
28,240,431 units. Fourth quarter distributionspzail in February of the following calendar yeautsgtholders of record in January or February
of such following year. The partnership agreemeqtires the next cash distribution to be paid by W, 2010.

6. Unaudited Oil and Natural Gas Reserve and Standardied Measure Information

The Net Profits Interests represent net profitsadieg royalty interests in various properties @drby the operating partnership. The
Royalty Properties consist of producing and nonpeaty mineral, royalty, overriding royalty, net fits, and leasehold interests located in 574
counties and parishes in 25 states. Amounts st fi@rein attributable to the Net Profits Interesffect our 96.97% net share. Although new
discoveries have occurred on certain of the RoyRtoperties, based on engineering studies avaitaldate, no events have occurred since
December 31, 2009 that would have a material effeaiur estimated proved developed reserves.

In accordance with FASB ASC 932 and SecuritiesiExchange Commission rules and regulations, theudtlg information is present
with regard to the Net Profits Interests and RgyBltoperties oil and natural gas reserves, allli€ware proved, developed and located in the
United States. These rules require inclusion agpalsement to the basic financial statements a staiwked measure of discounted future net
cash flows relating to proved oil and natural geserves. The standardized measure, in manageroeittien, should be examined with
caution. The basis for these disclosures is petnolengineers’ reserve studies which contain impeeestimates of quantities and rates of
production of reserves. Revision of prior yearraates can have a significant impact on the resAlgs, exploration and production
improvement costs in one year may significantlyngeaprevious estimates of proved reserves anduhkiation. Values of unproved
properties and anticipated future price and case@mses or decreases are not considered. Thertfergandardized measure is not necessarily
a best estimate of the fair value of oil and ndtgas properties or of future net cash flows.

The following summaries of changes in reservesstaiddardized measure of discounted future netftask were prepared from
estimates of proved reserves. The production vaotuanel reserve volumes included for properties fdsnwvned by Dorchester Hugoton are
wellhead volumes, which differ from sales volumkewn in “Iltem 7.—Management’s Discussion and Anialyg Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” because of fuel, shrinkagkmpeline loss. The Standardized Measure of Distad Future Net Cash Flows reflects
adjustments for such fuel, shrinkage and pipelass.|
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Summary of Changes in Proved Reserves

Qil (mbbl) Natural Gas (mmcf)
2009 2008 2007
@ 2009 () () 2009 2009 2008 2007
Estimated quantity, beginning of ye 3,57C 3,57C 3,656¢ 3,80z 60,977 60,977 61,25¢ 65,79¢
Purchase of minerals in pla — — — — 5,68 558t —
Revisions in previous estimat 15 13 317 80 2,64t 2,212 8,07C 3,721

Production
Estimated quantity, end of ye

@) Based on er-of-year pricing of oil

(306) (306) (313 (31€) (8,494

(8,494 (8,34f) (8,26/)

3,27¢ 3,27:; 3,57C 3,56€ 60,71

60,28( 60,977 61,25¢

and natural ge

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cashlows
(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 2009 2008 2007 ™)
Future estimated gross reveni $ 507,98 $ 333,16 $ 361,97: $ 636,73¢
Future estimated production co (26,04)) (18,489 (17,38) (31,969
Future estimated net revent 481,94¢ 314,67: 344,59 604,76!
10% annual discount for estimated timing of casw§ (221,639 (148,639 (155,109 (288,399
Standardized measure of discounted future estinratedash flow: $ 260,30¢ $ 166,03! $ 189,48: $ 316,36°
Sales of oil and natural gas produced, net of prtiolu costs $ (39,499 $ (84,64 $ (60,87
Purchase of reserves in ple 7,45¢ — —
Net changes in prices and production ¢ (8,396 (102,40 87,89¢
Revisions of previous quantity estima 4,751 22,93t 16,08
Accretion of discoun 18,94¢ 31,631 24.,61¢
Change in production rate and ot (6,709 5,58¢ 2,49(
Net change in standardized measure of discountadefestimated net cash

flows $ (23,449 $(126,88) $ 70,20¢
Depletion of oil and natural gas properties (dsllper mcfe $ 151 $ 1.4 $ 1.5¢
Property acquisition cos $ 35,24t $ — $ —
Average oil price per barr® $ 56.3i $ 35.6¢ $ 90.01
Average natural gas price per n@ $ 324 $ 497 $ 631

@) Based on er-of-year pricing of oil

and natural ge

@ Includes Royalty and Net Profits Interests priceslsined by volumetric proportion
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Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data
Quarterly financial data for the last two yearstfinusands except per unit data) is summarizedliasvs:

2009 Quarter Ended

2008 Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Total operating revenut $ 8,82¢ $ 9,68/ $10,70¢ $14,41°7 $21,27: $28,98¢ $24,487 $15,17¢
Net earning: $ 3777 $4,72C $ 4,41t $ 8,76¢ $15,41( $23,16¢ $18,59( $ 9,61
Net earnings per Unit (basic and dilut $ 017 $ 0.1€ $ 01¢ $ 02¢ $ 05 $ 08C $ 064 $ 0.3¢
Weighted average common units outstanc 28,24(  28,25¢ 29,84( 29,84( 28,24( 28,24( 28,24( 28,24(
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Exhibit 21.1
1. Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma LP, an Oklahoma lichzartnershiy

2.  Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, Inc., an Oklahooraoration



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our reports dated February 25, 2@fldrespect to the consolidated financial statet:i@nd internal control over financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Dorcleedflinerals, L.P. on Form 10-K for the year endest@&nber 31, 2009. We hereby consent
to the incorporation by reference of said repartthe Registration Statement of Dorchester Mindrd?s on Form S-4 (File No. 333-124544).

Dallas, Texas
February 25, 2010



Exhibit 23.2

CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES

P ETROLEUM C ONSULTANTS
4625 G REENVILLE A VENUE , S TE . 102
D ALLAs , T ExAs 75206
(214) 522-4925
F ACSIMILE : (214) 346-0310
RGBLAIR @ SWBELL . NET

February 22, 2010

Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, TX 75219

Gentlemen:

Calhoun, Blair & Associates does hereby consetiteéancorporation by reference in the Registragtatement on Form S-4 (No. 333-124544)
or Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of our estimated resgincluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-Kluiging, without limitation, Exhibit 99.1,
and to all references to our firm included in thisnual Report.

CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES

/s/ Robert G. Blair, P.E
Robert G. Blair, P.E
Presiden




Exhibit 23.3

Huddleston & Co., Inc.

Petroleum and Geological Engineers
1H OUSTON C ENTER
1221 M C K INNEY , S UITE 3700
H OUSTON, T EXAS 77010

P HONE (713) 209-1100  F AX (713) 752-0828
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS

Huddleston & Co., Inc. does hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-
124544) of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of our estimates of reserves included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including, without
limitation, Exhibit 99.2, and to all references to our firm included in this Annual Report.

HUDDLESTON & CO., INC.
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-1024

S . T ‘-’-2_—\—&_\:

By: Gregory S. Floyd, P.E.
Vice President

Houston, Texas
February 18, 2010



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, William Casey McManemin, certify that:
| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Dorchester Minerals, L.P

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf the end of the period covered by this repaseld on such evaluation; &

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repoet) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

s/ William Casey McManemi

William Casey McManemil
Date: February 25, 201 Chief Executive Officer o
Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC,
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals Managéinie
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals,




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, H.C. Allen, Jr., certify that:
| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Dorchester Minerals, L.P

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf the end of the period covered by this repaseld on such evaluation; &

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repoet) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

/s/ H.C. Allen, Jr

H.C. Allen, Jr.
Date: February 25, 201 Chief Financial Officer o
Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC,
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals Managéinie
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals,




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbiorchester Minerals, L.P., (the “Partnership”)eorm 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2009 (the “Report”), each of the usigaed officers of Dorchester Minerals ManagemeRtLEC, General Partner of
Dorchester Minerals Management LP, General Padhttre Partnership, hereby certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m «
780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Partnershig

/s/ William Casey McManemin
William Casey McManemil

Date: February 25, 201 Chief Executive Office
Date: February 25, 2010 /sl H.C. Allen, Jr
H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 99.1

CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES
PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS
4625 GREENVILLE AVENUE, SUITE 102
DALLAS, TEXAS 75206
(214)-522-4925
FACSIMILE: (214) 346-0310
RGBLAIR@SWBELL.NET

February 16, 2010

Dorchester Minerals Operating GP LLC
General Partner

3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Gentlemen:

In accordance with your instructions we have pregastimates of oil and gas reserves from certgisehold and royalty interests owned
by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP, which congigtgroperties grouped by Hugoton NPI, Republic N&linnaker NPI, Minerals NPI and
Bradley NPI. We have projected our estimates afreibil and gas production annually, as of JandaB010, for these properties. This report
includes 100% of the oil and gas reserves ownelddrghester Minerals Operating, LP, all of which kreated in the contiguous United Sta

Information necessary for the preparation of tretamates was obtained from records furnished bgliEster Minerals Operating LP,
from records on file with the state regulatory lesdiand from our own filedNo special tests were obtained to assist in theguegion of this
report. For the purpose of this report, the indiaidwell tests and production information as regain the records on file with the state
regulatory bodies were accepted as representegthiergwith all other factual data provided by Daster Minerals Operating LP, including
extent and character of the interest appraised.

The following table contains the estimated netmeseand revenues attributable to the propertyggdlat are currently in pay status as
of January 1, 2010.

Hugoton Republic Spinaker

NPI NPI NPI Total
Net Oil Reserves, BB 0 40,49( 32C 40,81(
Net Gas Reserves, MMC 25,634.76  471.70( 42.99( 26,149.45
Net Oil and Gas Revenue 76,987,01 3,744,531 197,90( 80,929,44
Net Operating Expense, 39,752,22 1,140,76! 68,46( 40,961,44
Net Taxes, ¢ 6,557,17¢ 370,34( 15,14( 6,942,65!
Net Capital Costs, 470,00( 0 0 470,00(
Net Income, § 30,207,62 2,233,431 114,31( 32,555,36

Net Present Worth at 10%, 21,747,93 1,640,891 86,82( 23,475,64



CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES
The estimated net reserves and revenues for tipegyogroups that are in a deficit pay status ataofiary 1, 2010 are as follows:

Minerals Bradley

NPI NPI Total
Net Oil Reserves, BB 65,33( 17C 65,50(
Net Gas Reserves, MMC 3,016.101 0.43C 3,016.53f
Net Oil and Gas Revenue 13,586,62 11,37( 13,597,99
Net Lease Operating Expense 3,709,671 2,39C 3,712,06!
Net Taxes, ¢ 927,20( 85C 928,05(
Net Capital Costs, 0 0 0
Net Income, § 8,949,75( 8,13( 8,957,88I
Net Present Worth at 10%, 6,450,631 7,15( 6,457,78!

All estimated reserves in this report are conside®proved developed producing. Proved developmtliping reserves are those proved
to a high degree of certainty by reason of actaatmetion or successful testing. Estimates of pdaeserves were made using standard
geological and engineering methods accepted bgedtreleum industry. The method, or combination etmoeds, utilized was tempered by
experience in the area, state of development, tyuadid extent of the basic data and productiorohisfThese methods and procedures were
appropriate for the purpose served by this repudtvee have used all methods necessary under thenstances to prepare this report.

When the information was available and the methad applicable, oil and gas reserves in this repere estimated by the extrapolation
of historical trends of pressure decline as a fonadf cumulative production, oil and gas productaecline as a function of time and oil and
gas production decline as a function of cumulapikeduction. For certain wells having a limited puotlon history, reserves were estimated by
analogy with nearby similar wells in the same fotiora All gas volumes are raw wellhead gas voluegzessed at 60 degrees Fahrenheit and
at a standard pressure base of 14.65 pounds peresigeh absolute.

Reserves in this report are expressed as grossetruil and gas production. Net oil and gas praduaatepresents those reserves net tc
appraised interest after deducting all leasehottrapalty interests owned by others. Values of meseare expressed in terms of net operating
revenues, cash flow before taxes, and present wgethoperating revenue is revenue, which wouldweeto the appraised interests from the
production and sale of the estimated net rese@a&sh flow before taxes is obtained by deducting@ssnce and ad valorem taxes, net operating
expenses and capital costs from net operating tevétet operating expenses include an allocatiupérvisory costs chargeable to the le
but do not include general and administrative ogach Oil and gas prices, net operating expensefutume capital costs were furnished by
Dorchester Minerals Operating LP. Present worthefined as the future cash flow before taxes distzmlat the rate of ten (10.00) percent per
year compounded annually. For the purpose of #psnt no estimate was made of salvage value foextisting lease and well equipment,
costs involved in abandonment of the wells.

Due to inherent uncertainties in future productiates, commaodity prices and geologic conditions,réserves included in this report are
estimates only and should not be construed as lesiagt quantities. The revenues from such resemeédshe actual costs related thereto could
be
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more or less than the estimated amounts. The sifapés investigation did not include an environnastudy of these properties, nor was an
on-site field inspection conducted. For the purposthizfreport, it was necessary to assume that fregerties are in compliance with exist
government regulations. Because of governmentéipsland uncertainties of supply and demand, tleeg actually received for the reserves
included in this report, and the costs incurreteitovering such reserves, may vary from price arstl @sumptions in this report. In any case,
estimates of reserves may increase or decreaseeaslbof future operation and as more produdiistory becomes available. There are no
known pending regulations that would affect thdighdf Dorchester Minerals Operating LP to recottes estimated reserves in this report.

The oil and gas prices included in this report waavided by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP amderadjusted for BTU, fuel and li
losses as well as for local markets. The priced wsae determined as an unweighted arithmetic geeo@the first day of the month price
during the twelve month period of 2009. The basemyae for the Oklahoma Hugoton operated propetias $3.03 per MMBTU while the
Kansas price was $2.81 per MMBTU. The averagerallgas prices for the other NPI properties were@Bper barrel and $3.78 per
MMBTU, respectively.

Calhoun, Blair & Associates have not examined ithetb these properties, nor has the actual degréxge of interest owned been
independently confirmed. We are independent patrnlengineers; we do not own an interest in thespgsties and are not employed on a
contingent basis. Basic field performance datattegewith our engineering work sheets are mainthmefile in our office and are available
for review.

Included in this report are summaries of grossratil and gas reserves grouped by Hugoton NRIuRe& NPI, Spinnaker NPI,
Minerals NPl and Bradley NPI. Also included arejpotions of estimated annual gross and net oilgagdproduction, net operating revenue,
severance and ad valorem taxes, net operating sepenet capital costs, cash flow before taxespeesknt worth for all properties appraised
as of January 1, 2010. Present worth of future ashis not meant to represent the Fair MarketWéabf these properties or of Dorchester
Minerals Operating LP.

Yours very truly,

/s/ Robert G. Blair, P.E
Calhoun, Blair & Associate
Licensed Professional Engine
State of Texas #680¢




Exhibit 99.2

Huddleston & Co., Inc.

Petroleum and Geological Engineers
1 Houston Center
1221 McKinney, Suite 3700
Houston, Texas 77010

PHONE (713) 209-1100 ® FAX (713) 752-0828

February 17, 2010

Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

Attention: Mr. William Casey McManemin
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Re: Estimated Reserves and Future Net Revenue
As of January 1, 2010
SEC Pricing Case

Gentlemen:

Pursuant to your request, we have summarized the estimated oil, condensate, natural gas, and plant product reserves and
projected revenues net to the interests owned by Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (‘“DMLP”). A portion of the future reserves and revenues
contained in this report were prepared by Calhoun Blair & Associates, Inc. (“Calhoun”) for DMLP. The subject properties are

located onshore in the continental United States.

Our conclusions, as of January 1, 2010, follow:

Net to Dorchester Minerals, L.P.*

Proved Total
SEC Product Prices Developed Proved
Estimated Future Net Oil/Cond., bbl 3,327,432 3,327,432
Estimated Future Net Gas, MMcf 30,755.2 30,755.2
Estimated Future Net Plant Products, MMcf 4,168.0 4,168.0
Estimated Future Gross Revenue, $ 301,592,243 301,592,243
Estimated Future Operating Expenses, $ 0 0
Estimated Future Production Taxes, $ 18,487,973 18,487,973
Estimated Future Net Revenue (FNR), $ 283,104,270 283,104,270
Estimated FNR, Discounted at 10%, $ 143,270,493 143,270,493
Estimated FNR, Discounted at 15%, $ 115,022,274 115,022,274
Projected Revenues by Year — SEC Product Prices
Estimated Net Revenue, $
2010 27,367,574 27,367,574
2011 24,726,274 24,726,274
2012 22,624,060 22,624,060
Thereafter 208,386,362 208,386,362
Total 283,104,270 283,104,270
Estimated Production — 2010
Oil/Cond., Mbbl 262,146 262,146
Gas, MMcf 3,768.7 3,768.7
Plant Products, MMcf 446.9 446.9

*Numbers subject to rounding.



Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
February 17, 2010
Page Two

Report Preparation

Purpose of Report — The purpose of this report is to provide DMLP with a projection of future reserves and revenues that
conforms to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) reporting requirements.

Reporting Requirements — SEC Regulation S-K, Item 102, and Regulation S-X, Rule 4-10, and Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 69 require oil and gas reserve information to be reported by publicly held companies as
supplemental financial data. These regulations and standards provide for estimates of Proved reserves and revenues discounted at
10% utilizing product prices based on the arithmetic average of the first-day-of-the-month prices for the trailing twelve months.

Standards of Practice — The Society of Petroleum Engineers (“SPE”) requires Proved reserves to be economically recoverable
with prices and costs in effect on the “as of” date of the report. In addition, the SPE has issued Standards Pertaining to the
Estimating and Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserve Information which sets requirements for qualifications and independence of
reserve estimators and auditors and accepted methods to be used for estimating future reserves.

The estimated reserves contained herein include all (100%) of DMLP’s royalty interests and were prepared in accordance with our
understanding of all the applicable SEC, FASB, and SPE regulation requirements and definitions. In our opinion, we have utilized
assumptions, data, methodologies, and procedures as was appropriate and necessary for the preparation and purpose of the
report. During our analysis, we were given access to DMLP data and personnel as requested. We note that we have necessarily
included composite projections of net oil and gas reserves given the limited information available to a royalty interest owner and the
relatively small net reserves attributable to any specific property within the composite group. SEC Regulation S-X, Rule 4-10, allows
large numbers of royalty interests that are not individually significant to be aggregated for purposes of accounting. The SPE does
not address the utilization of composite projections.

Definitions for reserves as outlined in SEC Regulation S-X, Rule 4-10 are included herein.

Reserve Estimates

Reserves for the producing and nonproducing properties were based on extrapolation of performance history and/or analogy to
offset wells producing from similar formations. Because of the limited information available to a royalty interest owner and the
relatively small net reserves attributable to any specific property, we have projected the Proved Developed reserves for certain
properties as a composite rather than evaluating the properties individually. The net composite oil and gas volumes have
historically exhibited minimal, if any, decline due to a combination of many factors such as exploratory and development drilling,
workovers and recompletions, and implementation of enhanced recovery operations on these properties. The aggregate decline
rate utilized for the composite projections anticipates what, in our opinion, is a reasonable level of future activity based on a review
of historical and recent drilling records, drilling permits, and new division orders provided by DMLP. We note, however, that DMLP
as a royalty interest owner has little, if any, influence over the future development of these properties, and actual future receipts
could be materially more or less than those estimated herein.

Plant products were projected on a property group by property group basis. Because of the difficulty in distinguishing between
various units of volume (gallons, barrels, long tons), various products (propane, butane, sulfur), and various unit prices, we have
projected plant product volumes as a percent of gas
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volumes based on the percentage of 2009 plant product revenue to 2009 gas revenue, derived from DMLP’s historical accounting
data.

The Fayetteville Royalty properties (Group 22) were projected by Calhoun. Calhoun also prepares reserve estimates for DMLP’s
Fayetteville net profits interest properties, which allows for consistency in reserve assignments where DMLP has both a net profits
and royalty interest in a well. We have included the Calhoun projections on an individual well basis in our report.

There are inherent uncertainties in the estimation and projection of future reserves and revenues. Economic and political forces,
product prices, operating costs, geologic conditions and the level of activity on DMLP’s properties may affect these estimates. The
reserves included in this report are estimates only and should not be construed as being exact quantities. They may or may not be
actually recovered, and if recovered, the revenues therefrom could be more or less than the estimated amounts. Moreover,
estimates of reserves may increase or decrease as a result of future operations.

Product Prices

The benchmark prices for oil and gas of $61.04 per barrel and $3.78 per MMBtu, respectively, were based on the arithmetic
average of the first-of-the-month NYMEX WTI spot price and the first-of-the-month Houston Ship Channel index price for the time
period January 2009 through December 2009. Product prices were held constant throughout the life of the properties.

Oil and gas prices were adjusted on a property group basis for gravity, heating value, sulfur content, transportation costs, and
market area utilizing DMLP’s historical accounting records.

A comparison of the average product prices, weighted as a composite for all properties, follows:

Benchmark Price Adjusted Price
SEC Product Prices Qil/Cond., $/bbl Gas, $/Mcf  Qil/Cond., $/bbl Gas, $/Mcf
2010 61.04 3.78 56.50 3.40
2011 61.04 3.78 56.49 3.39
Average Over Life 61.04 3.78 56.41 3.41
Maximum 61.04 3.78 56.50 3.53

Product price hedges, if any, were not considered for the purposes of this report.

Operating Expenses

All of the properties consist of only royalty interests that are not burdened by operating costs. We have deducted the proper
production taxes for those properties that were projected individually. For the composite projections we have deducted average tax
rates derived from DMLP’s accounting records.

Other Considerations

Additional Potential Values — Values were not assigned to nonproducing acreage or to acreage held by production, if any, or to
the salvage of surface and subsurface equipment. We have not accounted for any future lease bonus and rental income.
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Additional Costs — Costs were not deducted for general and admatiistrexpenses, depletion, depreciation, and amatidin, or potential
federal income tax.

Data Sources- Data including basic well information, accountitata, product prices, operating costs, ownersimig,initial test rates and/or
current producing rates of certain recently conguletells were supplied by DMLP. We have accepteditiiormation as correct.

Production statistics were obtained from publicrses for the individual properties and from DMLR@gnting records for the composite
property groups.

Report Qualifications — Estimates of future reserves are based on piauscof recoverable hydrocarbons, rates of prodacproration by
state and federal agencies, product prices, opgratists, and direct taxes. The reserve estimatésled herein were based on current
regulatory and market conditions. Any changes toecu government regulations and/or market conaitioould result in the volumes actually
recovered and the revenues actually received by PrtLdiffer significantly from the estimated quaiets presented in this report.

We specifically advise that any particular resegstimate for a specific property should not be umédf context with the entire report.

The revenues and present worth of future net revenues are not represented to be market values for individual properties or on atotal
property basis.

Respectfully submittec
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Gregory S. Floyd, P.E
Texas Registered Engineering Fir-1024
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